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FROM DESK OF MANAGING DIRECTOR

Dear Shareholders

The year 2017-18 has been in the overall context a challenging year for the Financial Services industry,
but more challenging for the microfinance industry. The turmoil caused on account of the
demonetization of the currency in India played out for the sector. At a sectoral level, the write off and
provisioning touched a peek of almost 15% of Portfolio outstanding as seen in case of some states like
Maharashtra and Karnataka.

Against this backdrop, your company also had to write off portfolio amounting to almost Rupees Ten
crores predominantly in the geographies of Sabarkantha and Kutch where the effects of the
demonetization was maximum. Whilst adhering to the prudent practice of writing off the entire
portfolio where the overdues have been more than 180 days, your company is making significant efforts
to recover the written off portfolio. Amongst this is having specialized teams for recovery, taking
financial literacy sessions for the borrowers and giving extra incentives to the recovery team for this
mammoth task.

Despite the above challenges, your company has been able to demonstrate a topline growth of portfolio
and the total Asset Under Management (AUM) growth of around 70.82% during F.Y 2017-18. Further
the Disbursement of the Company jump for the year at Rs.266.15 Cr showing a growth of 77.08% and
the growth in the number of customers of the company is around 27.72%. The company has also crossed
a mile stone of 100000 active customers during the year. The quality of portfolio (post demonetization
period is back to over 99% on time collection efficiency) remains stable for the incremental portfolio.
Your company is also actively working with Asian Development Bank (ADB) on a technical assistance
program to strengthen the Risk Management practices as it attempts to become mid-sized institution.

The high standards of corporate governance that your company has established from day one has
resulted into Dia Vikas (an arm of Opportunities International, Australia) a marquee social investor
investing in equity during 2017-18. This has enabled the company to maintain the growth momentum
that it had established despite the significant write off of the portfolio. Further the company has been
constantly focused on bringing down its cost of finance during the last year through better rate
negotiation and more efficient utilization of funds. This enabled your company to bring down the cost
of funds and we have able to reduced our cost of funds from 16.44% to 15.58% during the financial year.
The focus on creating greater operational efficiency is a constant endeavor that your company would
continue to have; towards this the company is embarking on digitization initiatives which is expected to
bring down our operational costs in future.

Going into the next year, as normalcy has been restored, your company proposes to expand its
footprints in the states of Rajasthan and Madhya Pradesh whilst further consolidating its leadership
position in Gujarat. Your company also plans to establish its first foot prints in eastern India by makings
its presence felt in the state of Bihar. Finally, as a part of the overall business model, your company will
continue to grow the Enterprise lending portfolio and intends to foray into the secured vehicle business



for the Bottom of the pyramid segment along with the conventional Joint Liability group (JLG) business
in line with the regulatory guidelines for the NBFC-MFI sector.

Last but not the least, your company would like to place on record its sincere appreciation to all its
stakeholders including funders and employees for reposing their faith in a difficult year and for their
constant support. We will continue to stay focused on creating value for both internal as well as for
external stakeholders.

Best Wishes

Purvi Bhavsar Kartik Mehta
Managing Director Managing Director



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Pahal Financial Services Private Limited
CIN: U65910GJ1994PTC082668
Registered & Corporate Office: First Floor-2, City Mall, Nr. Rajpath Club, Opp. Madhur Hotel, S.G Highway,
Bodakdev, Ahmedabad -380059
*Ph.: 079-40373857 Email: ho@pahalfinance.com eWebsite: www.pahalfinance.com

To,
The Members of Pahal Financial Services Pvt. Ltd.

Your directors have pleasure in presenting the annual report of the Company together with the Audited Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018.

The financial performance of your Company is healthy and the Company is on a growth path. The financial highlights
have been summarized in the following table:

1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

2. OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHT
Indicators 2017-18 2016-17
Number of States 4 4
Branches (Guj. + M.P.+ Maharashtra+ Rajasthan) 1 64
1,21,749
Number of Borrowers 95,511

Particulars Amount in (Rs.)

For the year ended 2017-18 2016-17
Total Revenue 40,27,58,134 37,92,73,643
Total Expenditure 49,30,65,948 34,89,10,271
Profit/Loss before Tax -9,03,07,814 3,03,63,372
Provision for Tax -2,46,39,797 1,14,96,657
Profit after Tax -6,56,68,017 1,88,66,716
Transfer to General Reserves NIL NIL
Paid Up Share Capital

Equity Share Capital 15,40,29,440 11,31,96,110
Preference Share Capital 4,50,00,000 3,00,00,000

The operational indicators also show growth in the following table.



mailto:ho@pahalfinance.com
http://www.pahalfinance.com/

el

Loan Amt. disbursed during the year (in Rs) 2,64,89,81,000 1,50,31,14,026
Total Portfolio O/S (Own+ Securitised & BC) 2,25,90,19,079 1,32,24,52,273
Less Securitised & BC portfolio 32,61,68,474 7,63,26,491
Net Own Portfolio 1,93,28,50,605 1,24,61,25,782
Borrowed Fund O/S 1,96,78,19,435 1,44,32,42,759
Total Staff 562 383
PAR > 30days In % 0.68% 7.05%
PAR > 30 days in amount 1,50,91,670 9,01,56,648

7
0.0

Pahal has increased its borrowers by appx. 26,238
Own portfolio increased by 55.11%

New borrowed fund increased by 36.35%
Disbursement of loan in amount increased by 76.23%
Total staff has increased by 46.74%

R/
0.0

7 7 7
0.0 0.0 0.0

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS
IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

There have been no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting
the going concern status and operations in future.

DEPOSITS

Being a Non Deposit taking Non - Banking Financial Company, your Company has not accepted any deposits
from the public.

DEBENTURES

During the year under review, your Company has issued 6,00,000 Compulsorily Convertible Debentures to
M/s DIA Vikas Capital Private Limited on private placement basis.



Details of Debenture Trustees of the Company are as follows:

Sr.No. | Name of the Debenture | Address Contact detail
trustees

1. Catalyst Trusteeship Limited Office No. 83 — 87, 8th floor,
(Erstwhile GDA Trusteeship | ‘Mittal Tower’, 022 - 4922 0555
Limited) ‘B’ Wing, Nariman Point,

Mumbai — 400021

2. IDBI  Trusteeship Services | Asian Building, Ground Floor, | 022-40807068
Limited 17R, Kamani Marg, Ballard
Estate, Mumbai -400001,
Maharashtra

The Listing Fees for the Financial Year 2018-19 has been duly paid.

6. DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The following Directors are Independent in terms of Section 149(6) of the Companies Act 2013

i Mr. Ambalal B Panchal
ii. Mr. Venkatraman G. lyer

The Company has received requisite declaration of Independence from the above Directors as required
pursuant to section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 stating that they meet the criteria of independence as
provided in section 149(6) of the Act. In the opinion of the board, these Independent Directors fulfill the
conditions as specified in the Act and the rules made thereunder for appointment as Independent Director
and confirm that they are independent of the management.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Company has implemented adequate procedures and internal financial controls which provide
reasonable assurance regarding reliability of financial reporting and preparation of financial statements. The
Company ensures that internal controls are operating effectively.

APPOINTMENTS/RESIGNATIONS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL DURING FINANCIAL
YEAR 2017-18

» Mr. Pramod Kumar Vijayvargia was appointed as Nominee Director (SIDB) w.e.f 17 October 2017;

> Mr. Saurabh Baroi was appointed as Nominee Director (DIA Vikas Capital Private Limited) w.e.f 5"
February 2018.



9. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Pursuant to the provisions of section 203 of the Companies Act 2013 read with the rules made thereunder,
following employees are the whole time key managerial personnel of the Company:

Mr. Kartik S Mehta, Managing Director
Ms. Purvi J Bhavsar, Managing Director
Mr. Chintan C Desai, Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Nikita Sharma, Company Secretary

YV V VYV VY

10. BOARD MEETINGS:

The Composition of the Board as on 31 March 2018 was as follows:

Sr. No. | Name of the Director Category

1. Mr. Ambalal B Panchal Non- Executive & Independent Director
2. Mr. Kartik S. Mehta Executive & Managing Director

3. Mr. Padmanabh P Vora Non-Executive Director

4, Ms. Purvi J. Bhavsar Executive & Managing Director

5. Mr. Pramod K Vijavargia Nominee Director

6. Mr. Saurabh Baroi Nominee Director

7. Mr. Venkatraman G lyer Non- Executive & Independent Director

The Board of Directors met 6(Six) times during the financial year. The intervening gap between any two
meetings was within the period prescribed by the Companies Act 2013.The details of which are given as

follows:
Meetings and Attendance of each director Of the Board
Total No.
Sr. Name of . of
No. Director ARG T TGS Meetings
Attended
6th 26th 5th 4th 18th zznd
May, Mav 2017 August, | November, | December, | January,
2017 & 2017 2017 2017 2018
Mr. Kartik S.
1 Mehta v X v v v v 5
Ms. Purvi J.
2 v v v x v v 5
Bhavsar
Mr.
3 | Padmanabh P. v v v v v v 6
Vora




Mr.
4 | Venkatraman N4 v v v x v 5
G. lyer

Mr. Ambalal B.
Panchal

Mr. Pramod
6 | Kumar - - - x N4 v 2
Vijayvargia

Mr. Saurabh
Baroi

V': Directors who have attended the meeting
x: Directors who were absent
-:  Directors who were no appointed till the date of meeting

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The last Annual General Meeting was held on 25™ September, 2017.

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

In Compliance of section 149 of Companies Act 2013, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the
Company was duly convened and held on 22" January 2017. Attendance of Independent Directors at the
meeting is given hereunder:

Sr. No. Name of the Director Whether present or not
1. Mr. Ambalal B Panchal Yes
2. Mr. Venkatraman G lyer Yes

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Currently the Board has following committees, the Audit committees, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Finance Committee.

13.1 Audit Committee
The Composition of the Audit Committee as on 31° March 2018 was as follows:

Sr. No. Name of the Member Category Designation
1. Mr. Padmanabh P Vora Non-Executive Director Chairman
2. Mr. Ambalal B Panchal Non- Executive & Independent Director | Member
3. Mr. Venkatraman G lyer Non- Executive & Independent Director | Member

The members of the Audit Committee met 4(Four) times during the financial year. The details of which are
given as follows:



Meetings and Attendance of each Member of the Audit Committee

Total
No. of
Sr- Name of Director Date of Meeting Meetin
No. gs
Attend
ed
6" May, | 5% August, | 4" November, | 22" January,
2017 2017 2017 2018
Mr. Padmanabh P. Vora v v v v 4
Mr. Venkatraman G. lyer v v v v 4
Mr. Ambalal B. Panchal x v v v 3

V': Directors who have attended the meeting

X:

Directors who were absent

Directors who were no appointed till the date of meeting

Terms of Reference of Audit Committee

++» Recommendation to the Board the appointment, remuneration, replacement or removal and terms of

X3

%

X3

%

4

*

L)

¢+ Valuation of undertaking or assets of the company , wherever it is necessary;

appointment of statutory auditors of the company;

Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of the audit

process,;

Examination of the financial statement and the auditor’s report thereon;

Approval or subsequent modifications of transactions of the Company with the related parties;

«¢+ Evaluation of Internal financial controls and risk management systems;

¢+ Scrutiny of Inter — Corporate Loans and Investment;

+» Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offer (if any) and related matter.




13.2 Nomination and Remuneration committee

The Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as on 31° March 2018 was as follows:

Sr. No. | Name of the Member Category Designation
1. Mr. Venkatraman G lyer Non- executive & Independent Director Chairman
2. Mr. Ambalal B Panchal Non- executive & Independent Director Member
3. Mr. Padmanabh P Vora Non- Executive Director Member

The members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 2(Two) times during the financial year.
The details of which are given as follows:

Meetings and Attendance of each Director of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Total No.
f
Sr. No. Name of Director Date of Meeting ° .
Meetings
Attended
5th August, 2017 22nd January, 2018
1 | Mr. Venkatraman G lyer v v 2
2 | Mr. Ambalal B Panchal v v 2
3 | Mr. Padmanabh P Vora v v 2

V': Directors who have attended the meeting
x: Directors who were absent
-: Directors who were no appointed till the date of meeting

Terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

% Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
Director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the Remuneration of the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and other Employees;

< Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

«+» Devising a policy on Board diversity;

% ldentifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior

Management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their
appointment and removal.
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13.3 Stakeholder Relationship Committee

The Composition of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee as on 31 March 2018 was as follows:

Sr. No. Name of the Member Category Designation
1. Mr. Ambalal B Panchal Non- executive & Independent Director| Chairman

2. Mr. Kartik S Mehta Executive Director Member

3. Ms. Purvi J Bhavsar Executive Director Member

The meeting of Stakeholders Relationship Committee was held on 22" January 2018. Attendance of Directors
at the meeting is given hereunder:

Sr. No. Name of the Member No. of Meeting held No. of Meeting
attended

1. Mr. Ambalal B Panchal 1 1

2. Mr. Kartik S Mehta 1 1

3. Ms. Purvi J Bhavsar 1 1

Terms of reference of Stakeholders Relationship Committee:

The role of Stakeholders Relationship Committee involves:

+»+ To consider and review shareholders’/ investors’ grievances and complaints and ensure that all
shareholders’/ investors’ grievances and correspondence are attended to expeditiously and
satisfactorily unless constrained by incomplete documentation and/ or legal impediments;

+» To do all other acts and deeds as may be necessary or incidental to the above.

13.4 Finance Committee

The Composition of Finance Committee as on 31°* March 2018 was as follows:

Sr. No. Name of the Member Category Designation
1. Mr. Kartik S Mehta Executive Director Member
2. Ms. Purvi J Bhavsar Executive Director Member

The Finance Committee meets on regular interval of time as and when required for the proper working of
the company.

14. BOARD EVALUATION:

In terms of provisions of the Companies Act 2013, the board has carried out an annual performance
evaluation of its own performance, the director individually as well as evaluation of the working of its
committees. The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire board.

11



15.

16.

el

The performance of the chairman and the Non-Independent directors was carried out by the Independent
Directors.

AUDITORS
15.1 Statutory Auditors

At the Annual General Meeting held on 25™ July 2014, M/S Manubhai & Shah LLP , Chartered Accountants,
Ahmedabad, firm with ICAl Registration No.106041W/W100136, were appointed as the Statutory Auditors
of the Company to hold office till the conclusion of the 9""Annual General Meeting. In terms of the first
proviso to section 139 of the Companies Act 2013, the appointment of the auditors shall be placed for
ratification at every Annual General Meeting.

Accordingly the appointment of M/S Manubhai & Shah LLP (Previously known as M/s Manubhai & Shah),
Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad as the Statutory Auditors of the company is placed for ratification by
the shareholders. In this regard, the Company has received a certificate from the auditors to the effect that
if they are re appointed, it would be in accordance with the provisions of Section 141 of the Companies Act
2013.

The Audit Report for the Financial Year ended 31 March 2018 doesnot contain any qualification,
reservation or adverse remark and form part of this report.

15.2  Secretarial Auditor

The Board has appointed M/s Anamika Jajoo & Co, Practicing Company Secretary to carry out Secretarial
Audit of the Company under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for the Financial Year 2017-18. The
report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. The Secretarial Audit Report is
annexed with this report as Annexure I.

15.3 Internal Auditor

As per Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s Dishang Shah and Co. was appointed to conduct the
Internal Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2017-18.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

During the period under review, the Company has not entered into any related party transactions under
Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013.

12



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

RISK MANAGEMENT

With MIS system and policies in place the risks has been managed. Pahal sends all loan applications to Credit
bureau check and that has controlled the over indebted borrowers from sanctioning further loans. Frequent
monitoring at the branches, at least 3 times in a year to a branch, and has kept branches to comply with the
company policies and processes. Accurate and robust MIS system helps the management and senior staff
to take preventive and corrective steps to control events and also takes care of growth.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Policy of the Company on director’s appointment and remuneration, including criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters provided under Sub- Section
(3) of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, adopted by the Board, is appended as Annexure Il to this
Report.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/VIGIL MECHANISM

The Board adopted and implemented the Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy that adopts best practice.
We have established a vigil mechanism for Directors and employees to report concerns and unethical
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of our code of conduct and ethics. It also provides for
adequate safeguards against the victimization of persons who use such mechanism and make provision for
direct access to the chairperson of the Audit Committee.

POLICY ON PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

The Company has adopted a Policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at the
workplace, in line with the provisions of “Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013” and the Rules made thereunder. Further, the Company has not received any
complaint of sexual harassment during the Financial Year 2017-18.

PAHAL EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION (ESOP) SCHEME

Pursuant to the approval accorded by the shareholders vide special resolution passed in last Annual General
Meeting held on 23" September 2016, the board had formulated an Employee Stock Option Scheme. During
the F.Y 2017-18 the company made aggregate 2, 00,000 grants to 3 employees.

Mandatory ESOP Disclosure:

Disclosures as required under section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 (to be read with rule 12 of the Companies

(Share Capital and Debenture) Rule 2014:
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Sr. No. Particulars 31t March 2018
1. Number of options granted beginning of year (A) 1,00,000

2. Number of options granted during the year (B) 2,00,000

3. Number of options vested during the year 30,000

4, Number of options exercised during the year 0

5. Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of option 0

6. Number of options lapsed during the year 0

7. The exercise price of the options Rs. 26 each
8. Variation of terms of options None

9. Money realized during the year by exercise of option 0

10. Number of options granted and in force at the end of the year 3,00,000

Options granted to the Key Managerial Personnel during the year

Exercise Price (In Rs.)
26 each

Options granted
50,000

Employee name
Mr. Chintan Desai

Designation
Chief Financial Officer

Any other employee who receive a grant of options in any one year of option amounting to five percent or

more of options granted during the year

Exercise Price (In Rs.)

Employee name

Designation

Options granted

Mr. Dharmesh Shah

Associate Director

50,000

Mr. Pushkar Parashar

Chief Operation Officer

1,00,000

26 each

22. SWEAT EQUITY PLAN

The members of the company are already aware that they already have granted an approval of issuance of
sweat equity shares to promoter cum Managing Director as per special resolution passed in earlier general
resolution passed in the general meeting of the company held on 23™ September 2016 and 25™ September
2017. Members are further being informed that in consideration of the services rendered by Mr. Kartik S
Mehta and Ms. Purvi J Bhavsar, Managing Directors, the Board of Directors of the company in its meeting
held on 30" July 2016 and 05™ August 2017 has decided to issue 1,25,000 and 2,50,000 number of sweat
equity shares of the company of Rs. 10/- each respectively to them in addition to the remuneration.

Disclosures as required under section 54 of the Companies Act, 2013 (to be read with rule 8 of the Companies
(Share Capital and Debenture) Rule 2014:

Sr. No. | Particulars 31 March 2018
1. The date of Board Meeting at which the Date of Board | Total No. of Sweat
proposal for issue of Sweat Equity Shares is Meeting Equity
approved Shares proposed
30.07.2016 2,50,000
05.08.2017 5,00,000

14



2. The class of director or employee to whom | Promoters- cum-Managing Directors
sweat equity shares were issued

3. The class of shares issued as Sweat Equity | Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each to be ranked
Shares pari-passu with existing equity shares

4. The number of sweat shares issued to the
directors, Key Managerial Personnel, or other | | Name of | Total No.ofl % of the
employees showing separately the number of | | Director shares issued
such shares issued to them, if any, for capital
consideration other than cash and the || Mr. Kartik S 3,75,000 5.14
individual name of allottees holding one per | | Mehta
cent or more of the issued share capital Ms. Purvi J 3,75,000 5.94

Bhavsar

5. The reasons or justification for the issue Mr. Kartik S Mehta and Ms. Purvi J Bhavsar,

the Promoter Directors of the Company, since
their induction in 2011 has helped the
Company to gain various intangible benefits
over and above tangible benefits which paved
the way for the Company for its growth and
prosperity. In light of this, the Company
concludes to confer some tangible benefits,
for the sweat they have contributed, over and
above normal remuneration.

6. The principal terms and conditions for issue | (1) The Sweat Equity Shares issued will be
of sweat equity shares, including pricing treated as a part of managerial
formula remuneration for the purpose of

applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013.

(2) The Sweat Equity Shares shall be
locked in for a period of three years
from the date of allotment and shall be
issued.

(3) Valuation as per Registered Valuer’s
report

7. The total number of shares arising as a result | 7,50,000
of issue of sweat equity shares

8. Total number of shares to be issued as sweat | 5,00,000
equity

9. The percentage of the sweat equity shares of | | Date of | No. of Sweat | Post issued
the total post issued and paid up share capital | | allotment | equity and paid up

allotted share capital

08.09.2017 | 2,50,000 1,15,69,611

22.01.2018 | 2,50,000 1,18,19,611

24.01.2018 | 2,50,000 1,20,69,611

10. | The consideration (including consideration | Rs. 10 per shares received in cash for sweat

other than shares) received or benefit
accrued to the company from the issue of
sweat equity shares

equity shares

15



11. | The diluted Earning Per Share (EPS) pursuant | (5.45)
to issuance of sweat equity shares

Other disclosure:

The following are the details of Managing Director to whom sweat equity shares issued/are to be issued:

Name Kartik S. Mehta Purvi J. Bhavsar
Age 50 45
Qualification Chartered Accountant, | Graduate

Cost Accountant, Certified
Financial Planner

Experience Around 26 years Around 24 years
Remuneration last drawn Rs. 37,51,200 Rs. 37,51,200

Date of first appointment on the Board | 08" February 2011 08*" February 2011
Shareholding in the company (including | 5.14% 5.94%

joint holding and holding as karta)

Relationship with other | NIL NIL
director/manager/KMP of the

Company:

No. of meetings of the Board attended | 5 5

during the year 2017-18

Details of directorship of other boards | Director in other company | Director in other company

a.KIFS  Housing Finance | a. KIFS Housing Finance Private
Private Limited Limited

In addition to above, he | In addition to above, she also
also holds a position of | holds a position of Designated
Designated  Partner in | Partner in Suyash Advisory LLP.

Suyash Advisory LP.

23. EMPLOYEE REMUNERATION

** None of the employees of the company was in receipt of the remuneration exceeding the limits
prescribed u/s 197(12) read with rule 5, sub rule 2 of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review.

16



24,

25.

26.

27.

++» The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median employee’s remuneration and other details
in terms of sub section 12 of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 are forming part of this report as
Annexure Il

CODE OF CONDUCT AND TRAINING

Code of Conduct (CoC) is a very important tool which reflects the industry benchmarks. It enshrines
customer protection principles, good governance benchmarks and market behavior. Pahal has gone for
CoC assessment and tries to improve on weaknesses at the field level. Pahal has a training cell to give
training to new staff and to conduct refresher training for existing staff. This guides the staff on their
behavior with the borrowers. Pahal has Principal Officer to take care of complaints received from the
clients and resolve them to their satisfaction.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS

There are no Significant and Material Orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunal impacting the
going concern status and Company’s Operation in future.

STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

The disclosures to be made under sub-section (3) (m) of section 134 of the Companies Act 2013 read with
Rule (8) (3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 by your company are explained as under:

+» Information Relating to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption:

Though the Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity, it consistently invests in energy
efficient office equipment at all its branch office locations and strives to promote and provide funds to
its borrowers to acquire eco-friendly stoves and lighting equipment.

+»* Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:
There are no foreign exchange inflows and outflows transactions during the year 2017-18.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the board of directors, to the best of their knowledge
and ability, confirm that:

%+ in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and
there are no material departures;
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28.

29.

el

+»+ they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for that period;

++ they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

++ they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

++ they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such internal
financial controls are adequate and operating effectively;

++ they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with the section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act 2013, the extract of the Annual Return in
form MGT -9 is attached as Annexure -1V and forms part of this report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your Directors warmly appreciate the dedication and commitment of all employees. They acknowledge the
assistance, cooperation and encouragement given to your company by the shareholders, lenders, bankers
and all other stake holders who have made valuable contribution for the growth of your Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Date: 10" August 2018 Kartik S. Mehta Purvi J. Bhavsar
Place: Ahmedabad Managing Director Managing Director
(DIN: 02083342) (DIN: 02102740)
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ANNEXURE -I
FORM MR -3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

(FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2018)
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of

the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Pahal Financial Services Pvt.Limited

(CIN: U65910GJ1994PTC082668)

First Floor 2, City Mall, Nr. Rajpath Club,
Opp. Madhur Hotel, S.G Highway,Bodakdev
Ahmedabad GJ 380059 IN

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Pahal Financial Services Pvt. Limited (hereinafter called “the
company”) for the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2018. Secretarial audit was
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts /
statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that, the company
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2018 complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the company has proper board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

l. The company is engaged in the business of non-banking financial institution as defined in Section 451
(a) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

. | have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the company, for the financial year ended on March 31, 2018, according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Rules made thereunder;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the Rules made thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
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(iv) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”):

(a)

(b)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

| have also examined compliance of the following to the extent applicable:

(c)
(d)

The Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;
and

The Listing Agreements entered into by the company with the Bombay Stock
Exchange.

Il. During the period under review provisions of following provisions were not applicable to the

Company:

(i). The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (“FEMA”) and the Rules and Regulations
made thereunder to the extent of foreign direct investment, overseas direct investment and
external commercial borrowings; and

(ii). The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
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VI.

VII.

VIII.

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the applicable
provisions of Acts, Rules, Regulations, guidelines, standards etc. as mentioned above.

| further report that:

(i) The board of directors of the company is duly constituted with proper balance of executive
directors, non- executive directors and independent directors;

(i) Adequate notices are given to all the directors to conduct the meetings of board and its
committees. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance,
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting;

(iii) Majority decision is considered while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are captured
and recorded as part of the minutes;

(iv) The company has obtained all necessary approvals under the various provisions of the Act;

(v) There were no prosecution initiated and no fines or penalties imposed during the year under
review under the Act, SEBI Act, SCRA, Depositories Act, Listing Agreement and Rules,
Regulations and Guidelines framed under these Acts against / on the company, its directors
and officers; and

(vi) The directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect of their eligibility
of appointment, their being independent and compliance with the code of business conduct
& ethics for directors and managerial personnel.

| further report that having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the company and on
examination of relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, the company has complied
with the following laws applicable specifically to the company:

(i) The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and its circulars, master circulars, notifications and
directions as prescribed for NBFC companies; and
(i) The Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002.

| further report that having regard to compliance of financial laws, income tax laws, goods and service
tax laws, we have relied on the report of statutory auditors of the company.

| further report that based on the information received and the records maintained, there are
adequate systems and processes in the company that commensurate with the size and operations of
the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations and
Guidelines.

| further report that, during the audit period, there were no specific events / actions having a major

bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred Laws, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc.
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IX.  IFurther report that during the period under review and audit (from 1°t April,2017 to 31°* March 2018)
the company has:

1. Increased its Authorised share capital from Rs. 20,40,00,000 to Rs. 21,90,00,000
Issued 7,50,000 sweat equity shares @ nominal value of 10 Rs per share.
Issued 33,33,333 equity shares @Rs. 30 each including premium of Rs. 20 per shares on private
Placement basis.

4. Issued compulsory convertible debentures 6,00,000 @ face value of 100 Rs each.

5. Redeemed 15,00,000 preference shares @ 10 Rs each.

For Anamika Jajoo & Co.,
Practicing company secretary

Sd/-

Anamika Jajoo
(Proprietor)

C. P. No.: 13859
ACS No.:20918

Ahmedabad
271 July 2018

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ANNEXURE — | and forms
an integral part of this report.
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Annexure |
To,

The Members,

Pahal Financial Services Pvt. Limited

(CIN: U65910GJ1994PTC082668)

First Floor 2, City Mall, Nr. Rajpath Club,
Opp. Madhur Hotel, S.G Highway, Bodakdev
Ahmedabad GJ 380059 IN

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

l. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

Il. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done
on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the
processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

lll.  We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts
of the company.

IV.  Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

V. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards
is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures
on test basis.

VI.  The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For Anamika Jajoo & Co.,
Practicing company secretary

Sd/-

Anamika Jajoo
(Proprietor)

C. P. No.: 13859
ACS No.:20918

27" July 2018
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ANNEXURE I

Nomination and remuneration Policy

This policy shall act as a guideline for determining, inter-alia, qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director, matters relating to the remuneration, appointment, removal and evaluation of
performance of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and other employees.

Role of Committee:

The role of the Committee shall be:

1.1

1.2

13

14

15

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director
and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial
personnel and other employees;

Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior

management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment
and removal;

To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
Senior Management;

To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the Board for
further evaluation of the Board;

To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
Senior Management;

To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward linked directly to their effort,
performance, dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s operations;

Devise a policy on Board diversity;
Develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan;

Carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and/or enforced by any
statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable.

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy has been formulated in order to bring about objectivity in

determining the remuneration package while striking a balance between the interest of the Company and

the shareholders.
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In the context of the aforesaid criteria the following policy has been formulated by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and adopted by the Board of Directors.

2. Definition:

2.1

Key Managerial Personnel means

e Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager;
e Whole-time director;

e Chief Financial Officer;

e Company Secretary; and

e Such other officer as may be prescribed

3. Applicability:

This Policy is applicable to:

3.1
3.2
33

This

Directors viz. Executive, Non-Executive and Independent;
Key Managerial Personnel;
Senior Management Personnel;

Remuneration Policy shall also apply to all future / continuing employment/ engagement(s) with the
Company. In other respects, the Remuneration Policy shall be of guidance for the Board. Any departure from

the policy shall be recorded and reasoned in the Committee and Board meeting minutes.

4. Objective of the Policy:

The policy is framed with the objective(s):

4.1 That the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully.

4.2 That the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks.

4.3 Remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate
to the working of the company and its goals.

Chairman:

a) Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent Director;

b) Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee but shall not Chair

the Committee;
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In the absence of the Chairman, the members of the Committee present at the meeting shall choose
one amongst them to act as Chairman;

Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee could be present at the Annual General
Meeting or may nominate some other member to answer the shareholders’ queries.

6. Frequency of Meetings:

The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required.

7. Committee Members Interests:

a) A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own remuneration is
discussed at a meeting or when his or her performance is being evaluated

b) The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the meetings
of the Committee.

8. Appointment and Removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management:

8.1 Appointment Criteria and qualifications:

a)

b)

d)

e)

f)

The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of
the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to
the Board his / her appointment.

A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he / she
is considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification,
expertise and experience possessed by a person are sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned
position.

The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Managing
Director/Whole-time Director/Manager who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that
the term of the person holding this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with
the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement
annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the justification for extension of appointment
beyond seventy years.

Appointment of Independent Directors is subject compliance of provisions of section 149 of the Act,
read with schedule IV and rules thereunder.

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of
the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the
Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.

No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such
Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to
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become an Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said
period of three years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity,
either directly or indirectly. However, if a person who has already served as an Independent Director
for 5 years or more in the Company as on 1 October, 2014 or such other date as may be determined
by the Committee as per regulatory requirement, he / she shall be eligible for appointment for one
more term of 5 years only.

The Term / Tenure of the Directors shall be governed as per provisions of the Act, and rules made
thereunder as amended from time to time.

8.2 Non-Executive Director: The Non-Executive Directors shall be evaluated on the basis of the following

criteriai.e.

Whether they:

a) act objectively and constructively while exercising their duties;

b) exercise their responsibilities in a bona fide manner in the interest of the company;

c) devote sufficient time and attention to their professional obligations for informed and balanced
decision making;

d) do not abuse their position to the detriment of the company or its shareholders or for the purpose
of gaining direct or indirect personal advantage or advantage for any associated person;

e) refrain from any action that would lead to loss of his independence;

f)  inform the Board immediately when they lose their independence;

g) assist the company in implementing the best corporate governance practices;

h) strive to attend all meetings of the Board of Directors and the Committees;

i)  participate constructively and actively in the committees of the Board in which they are chairpersons
or members;

j)  strive to attend the general meetings of the company;

k) keep themselves well informed about the company and the external environment in which it
operates;

I)  do not to unfairly obstruct the functioning of an otherwise proper Board or Committee of the Board;

m) Moderate and arbitrate in the interest of the company as a whole, in situations of conflict between
management and shareholder’s interest;

n) abide by Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, company’s policies and procedures

including code of conduct.

8.3 Removal:

Due to reasons for any disqualifications mentioned in the Act, rules made thereunder or under any other
applicable Act, rules and regulations, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded
in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management subject to the provisions and compliance of
the said Act, rules and regulations.
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9. Matters relating to the remuneration, perquisites for the Whole-time Director, KMP and Senior Management
Personnel

9.1

>

The remuneration/compensation/ profit-linked commission etc. to the Whole Time Director, Directors
will be determined by the Committee and recommended to the Board for approval.

Increments to the existing remuneration/ compensation structure shall be approved by the
Committee.

Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Whole-time Director, Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer or Company Secretary for indemnifying any of them against any liability,
in respect of any negligence, default, misfeasance, breach of duty or breach of trust for which they may
be guilty in relation to the company, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part
of the remuneration payable to any such personnel.

Sitting Fees:

The Non-executive/ Independent Directors of the Company shall be paid sitting fees as per the
applicable Regulations and no sitting fee is paid to Non-Independent Directors. The quantum of
sitting fees will be determined as per the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Profit Linked Commission:
The profit —linked Commission shall be paid within the monetary limit approved by the shareholders
of the Company subject to the same not exceeding 1% of the net profits of the Company computed
as per the applicable provisions of the Regulations.
Stock Options:
Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, an Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock
option of the Company. Only such employees of the Company and its Subsidiaries as approved by
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee will be granted ESOPs.
Remuneration to Senior Management Personnel, Key Managerial Personnel and Other Employees:
The Senior Management Personnel and other employees of the Company shall be paid monthly
remuneration as per the Company’s HR policies and/ or as may be approved by the Committee. The

break-up of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including employer’s contribution to P.F, pension
scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. as per the Company’s HR policies.
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10. Amendments to the policy

The Board of Directors on its own and/ or as per the recommendations of Committee can amend this policy,
as and when deemed fit.

In case of any amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc. issued by the relevant authorities, not being
consistent with the provisions laid down under this Policy, then such amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s)
etc. shall prevail upon the provisions hereunder and this Policy shall stand amended accordingly from the
effective date as laid down under such amendment(s),clarification(s), circular(s) etc.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Date: 10" August 2018 Kartik S. Mehta Purvi J. Bhavsar
Place: Ahmedabad Managing Director Managing Director
(DIN: 02083342) (DIN: 02102740)
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ANNEXURE Il

Analysis of Managerial Remuneration

Pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the statistical analysis of the remuneration paid to
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) as against the other employees of the company and with
respect to the performance of the company (PAT) is given below:

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the
company for the financial year 2017-18:

Name of the Director Ratio of remuneration to | Percentage increase in the
median employee of the | remuneration for the Financial Year
company * 2017-18 as compared to previous

year remuneration

Ms. Purvi J Bhavsar 26:1 -

Mr. Kartik S Mehta 26:1 -

*Median remuneration of the employees of the company be Rs. 1,43,628

2. The percentage increase in remuneration of following Key Managerial Personnel(KMP) , if any, in the
financial year 2017-18

Name of the KMP Designation Percentage increase in the remuneration for
the Financial Year 2017-18 as compared to
previous year remuneration

Mr. Kartik S Mehta Managing Director -
Ms. Purvi J Bhavsar Managing Director -
Mr. Chintan Desai Chief Financial Officer 12.70
Ms. Nikita Sharma Company Secretary 19.89

3. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of the employees in the financial year 2017-18:
0.77%

4. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the company as on 315 March 2018: 562

5. Variation in the net worth of the Company as at the close of the current financial year and previous
financial year: 9.21%
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Average Percentile increase in the Salaries of the Employees other than Managerial Personnel is around
1.00 % and increase in salary of Managerial Personnel during last financial year is disclosed in point 2
mentioned above.

Key Parameters for any variable component of remuneration (i.e. Commission) availed by the Directors
are based on their contribution at the Board, time spent on operational matters and other responsibilities
assigned. N.A.

None of the Employee other than director(s) received remuneration in excess of the highest paid Director
during the Financial Year 2017-18.

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the year is as per the Remuneration Policy of the
Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Date: 10" August 2018 Kartik S. Mehta Purvi J. Bhavsar
Place: Ahmedabad Managing Director Managing Director
(DIN: 02083342) (DIN: 02102740)
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ANNEXURE IV:

FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2018
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management &
Administration) Rules, 2014.

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

CIN:-

U65910GJ1994PTC082668

Registration Date:

01.12.1994

Name of the Company:

Pahal Financial Services Private Limited

Category / Sub-Category of the Company:

Private Company/ Non - Banking Financial Company

Address of the Registered office and
contact details:

First Floor — 2, City Mall, Nr. Rajpath Club, Opp. Madhur
Hotel, S.G Highway, Bodakdev, Ahmedabad -380059
Phone: 079-40373857

Email: ho@pahalfinance.com

Website: www.pahalfinance.com

Whether listed company

Debt Listed Company

Name, Address and Contact details of
Registrar and Transfer Agent

Skyline Financial Services Private Limited
4 A9, Gundecha Onclave, Kherani Road, Sakinaka,
Mumbai - 400072

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:-

% to total
Name and Description of main NIC Code of the Product/ turnover of the
Sl. No. products / services service company
1 Granting loans to individuals 99711352 100%
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PARICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

Sl.

No.| Name & CIN
Address of
the Company

Holding/Subsidiary/Associate

% of shares
held

Applicable
Section

NOT APPLICABLE

IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as a percentage of Total Equity)

(i) Category Wise Shareholding

%
f
Category o No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year Change
Shareholders
during
0,
% of Total 'fo(z;c I the
. (o] .
Demat Physical Total Shares Demat Physical Total Shares year
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/
HUF - 9,57,137 9,57,137 8.45 9,07,137 8,00,000 17,07,137 11.08 5 63
b) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
c) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -
d) Bodies Corp. - - - -
e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
f) Any other - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (A) (1) 0 9,57,137 9,57,137 8.45 9,07,137 8,00,000 17,07,137 11.08 2.63
(2) Foreign
a) NRI- ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ] )
Individuals
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b) Other
Individuals

c) Bodies
Corp.

d) Banks/FI

e) Any Other

f) Sub Total
(A) (2)

Total
shareholding of
promoters

9,57,137

9,57,137

8.45

9,07,137

8,00,000

17,07,137

11.08

2.63

(A)=(A) (1) +(A)
(2)

9,57,137

9,57,137

8.45

9,07,137

8,00,000

17,07,137

11.08

2.63

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

c) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture
Capital Funds
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f) Insurance
Companies

g) Flis

h) Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds

i) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(1):-

2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

8,44,359

8,44,359

7.46

41,53,333

41,53,333

26.96

19.50

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh

10,000

10,000

0.09

10,000

10,000

0.06

(0.02)

ii) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs 1
lakh

95,08,115

95,08,115

84.00

66,12,115

29,20,359

95,32,474

61.89

(22.11)

c) Others
(specify)

Non Resident
Indians

Overseas
Corporate Bodies

Foreign
Nationals

Clearing
Members

35




Trusts -

Foreign Bodies -
DR

Sub-total (B)(2):- NIL

1,03,62,474

1,03,62,474

91.55

66,12,115 | 70,83,692 | 1,36,95,807

88.91 | (2.63)

Total Public
Shareholding

B=@))+@)2) |

1,03,62,474

1,03,62,474

91.55

66,12,115 | 70,83,692 | 1,36,95,807

88.91 | (2.63)

C. Shares held
by Custodian for -
GDRs &ADRs

Grand Total

(A+B+C) Nil

1,13,19,611

1,13,19,611

100

75,19,252 | 78,83,692 | 1,54,02,944

100.00

(ii) Shareholding of Promoter-

Sr- Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the Shareholding at the end of the year
No. year
%of % change in
% of %of Shares % of total Shares shareholding
total Pledged / N Pledged / | during the
No. of No. of Shares of
Shares * Shares | encumbered Shares the encumber | year
of the | to total compan ed to
company | shares pany total
shares
1 | Ms. PurviJ Bhavsar 5,40,469 4.77 9,15,469 5.94 - 1.17
2 | Mr. Kartik S Mehta 4,16,668 3.68 791,668 5.14 - 1.46

*The above shareholding of promoters of the company is inclusive of their joint shareholding and shares held as Karta

of HUF
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iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change):

Shareholding
St at the Date of Increase/ Cumulative Shareholding
Nc; Name beginning of Allotment Decrease in Reason during the year(01-04-2017
) the year -1st Shareholding to 31.03.2018)
April 2017
% of total
equity
No. of shares shares of
the
company
08.09.2017 1,25,000 5,41,668 4.68
! Kartik S Mehta 416,668 | 52012018 | 250,000 | pyrchase of 7,91,668 6.69
31.03.2018 z‘éveat Equity 7,91,668 5.14
ares
5,40,469 | 08.09.2017 1,25,000 6,65,469 5.75
2 Purvi J Bhavsar 24.01.2018 2,50,000 9,15,469 7.58
31.03.2018 9,15,469 5.94

iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

Sr.

No.

Name of Top
10
Shareholders

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Date

Increase/
Decrease in
Shareholding

Reason

Cumulative
Shareholding
during the
year

No. of
Shares

% of total
shares

% of total

No. of shares
shares
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DIA Vikas
05.02.2018 33,33,333 Purchase
1 | Capital Pvt. 0 0 ! 33,33,333 21.64
Ltd. 31.03.2018
5 | Vimal P 20,79,812 18.37 20,79,812 13.50
Khandwala .
No Movement during the year
5 | Rajesh P 20,79,803 18.37 20,79,803 13.50
Khandwala
Girishbhai N 12.12.2017 (6,50,000) Sale 11,50,000 9.94
4 | 2'MSnONaA 18,00,000 15.9
Patel
31.03.2018 11,50,000 7.47
ji 29.03.201 44 Purch
5 Rajiv G Patel 0 0 9.03.2018 8,44,359 urchase 8 44,359 5.48
— HUF 31.03.2018
12.12.2017 6,50,000 6,50,000 5.62
Suyash Purchase
6 . 0 0| 13.12.2017 1,70,000 8,20,000 7.07
Advisory LLP
31.03.2018 8,20,000 5.32
7 Sandeep 5,40,000 4.77 | 06.11.2017 80,000 Purchase 6,20,000 5.36
Mittal 31.03.2018 6,20,000 4.03
3 Meenal Jai 3,90,000 3.45 | 06.11.2017 (1,00,000) Sale 2,90,000 2.51
Singh 31.03.2018 2,90,000 1.88
Zubeen
9 Mehrotra 2,50,000 2.21 | 31.03.2018 No Movement during the 2,50,000 1.62
ear
Jignesh J. y
10 | Shah J/w. 2,25,000 1.99 | - 225000 1.46
Kanan J. Shah
v) Shareholding of Director and Key Managerial Personnel
:;':::::Z Cumulative
Sr. | Name of Shareholding at the . Shareholdin
No. | Director/KMP beginning of the year Date n Reason during the
: ginning ¥ Shareholdi g during
year
ng
0,
% of total t/:>toafl
No. of shares of No. of
shares of
Shares the shares
compan the
pany company
08.09.2017 1,25,000 Purchase 5,41,668 4.68
1 | Mr. Kartik S Mehta 4,16,668 3.24 | 22.01.2018 2,50,000 Purchase 2 91 668 6.69
31.03.2018 " 5.14
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o

08.09.2017 125000 Purchase 6,65,469 5.75
2 | Ms. PurviJ Bhavsar 5,40,469 4.77 24.01.2018 250000 Swgat
Equity 9,15,469 7.58
31.03.2018 5.94
3 Mr. Ambalal B i | i i i
Panchal
4 Vl\g:a Padmanabh P |, 1/ 000 1.27 | 31.03.2018 1,44,000 0.93
No Movement during the
year
5 :\cg;ve”katrama” S| 25000 0.22 | 31.03.2018 25,000 0.16
6 | Mr. Saurabh Baroi - - - -
7 Mr. Pramod Kumar i i i i
Vijayvergia
8 | Mr. Chintan C Desai - - - -
9 | Ms. Nikita Sharma - - - -
V. INDEBTEDNESS OF THE COMPANY INCLUDING INTEREST OUTSTANDING/ACCRUED BUT NOT DUE FOR
PAYMENT
(Rs. In lacs)
Secured
Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 13,932.42 500.00 14,432.42
ii) Interest due but not paid - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 47.31 - 47.31
Total (i+ii+iii) 13,979.73 500.00 14,479.73
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
* Addition 15,820.00 1,200.00 17,020.00
* Reduction 11,774.23 - 11,774.23
Net Change
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 17,978.19 1,700.00 19,678.19
ii) Interest due but not paid - -
iii) Interest accrued but not due 73.83 - 73.83
Total ( i+ ii + iii) 18,052.02 1,700.00 19,752.02
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole Time Director and/or Manager

Total
Amount
SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager (In Rs.)
Mr. Kartik S Mehta Ms. Purvi J
Bhavsar
Managing Director Managing Director
Gross salary
a) Salary as per provisions contained in
.ie)ction I7(1)pof tF;w Income-tax Act, 1961 37,51,200 37,51,200 75,02,400
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax 0 0 0
Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 0 0 0
Income- tax Act, 1961
Stock Option 0 0 0
Sweat Equity 37,50,000 37,50,000 75,00,000
Commission
- as % of profit 0 0 0
- others, specify...
Others, please specify 0 0 0
Total (A) 75,01,200 75,01,200 1,50,02,400

Ceiling as per the Act
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Remuneration to Non - Executive Directors

SN.

Particulars of
Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total Amount

(InRs.)

Venkatraman
G lyer

Padmanabh

P Vora Panchal

Ambalal B

Pramod K
Vijayvargia

Independent
Directors

Fee for attending
board committee
meetings

80,000

72,500

1,52,500

Commission

Others, please
specify

Total (1)

80,000

72,500

1,52,500

Other Non-
Executive
Directors

Fee for attending
board committee
meetings

90,000

20,000

1,10,000

Commission

Others, please
specify

5,00,000

5,00,000

Total (2)

5,90,000

20,000

6,10,000

Total (B)=(1+2)

80,000

5,90,000

72,500

20,000

7,62,500

Total Managerial
Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as
per the Act
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VII.

C. Remuneration To Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

SN | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
Company Secretary | CFO Total
Gross salary
a) Salary as per provisions contained in section
(17)(1) onhe Iicofne—tax Act, 1961 3,99,558 19,51,044 23,50,602
1 | (b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, i i i
1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) i
Income-tax Act, 1961
2 | Stock Option - - -
3 | Sweat Equity - - -
4 | Commission - - -
- as % of profit - - -
others, specify... - - -
5 | Others, please specify - - -
Total 3,99,558 19,51,044 23,50,602
Penalties / Punishment/ Compounding Of Offences: N I L
Type Section of the Details of the Authority Details of Appeal made if
Companies Act Penalty, Fees imposing any
(RD/NCLT/Court)
Penalty

Compounding

Other Officers in
Default

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

NIL

Date: 10" August 2018
Place: Ahmedabad

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Purvi J. Bhavsar
Managing Director
(DIN: 02102740)

Kartik S. Mehta
Managing Director

(DIN: 02083342)

42




Manubhai & Shah LLP

Chartered Accountants
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
Pahal Financial Services Private Limited

Report on Financial Staterments

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Pahal Financial Services Private Limited
{"the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and
Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read together with Rule 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Companies {Accounting Standards} Amendment Rules,
2016.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the

Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabie
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control e

relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view

order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also incfu
G-4, Capstone, Opp. Chirag Motors, Sheth Mangaldas Road, Eflisbridge, Ahmedabad - 380 006, Gujarat, Ing
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Manubhai & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants

evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements,

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, its Joss and its cash flows for the year ended

on that date.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section {11} of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3} of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

{d} In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014;

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 {2) of the Act;

{f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in Annexure B of the report;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance

Independent Auditor's Report on Financial Statements of
Pahal Financial Services Private Limited for the year ending on March 31, 2018 Page 20f7



Manubhai & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations having material effect on
its financial position as at March 31, 2018;

(ii} The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts as at March 31, 2018 for which there were any material foreseeable
losses; and

{iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Manubhai & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Reg./No. 106041W/W100136

”J | e
Pl

V

Date: May 3, 2018 (J. D. Shah)
Partner
Place: Ahmedabad Membership No.: 100116

Independent Auditor's Report on Financial Statements of
Pahal Financial Services Private Limited for the year ending on March 31, 2018 Page3of7



Manubhai & Shah L.LP
Chartered Accountants

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

[Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
section of our report on financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 to the members of
Pahal Financial Services Private Limited]

(i} (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
gquantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b)  The fixed assets have been physically verified by the Management during the year and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c}  According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no
immovable properties included in the fixed assets of the Company and accordingly the
requirements under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(i) The Company's business does not involve inventories and accordingly the reporting
requirements of clause 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company, hence not
commented upon.

(i) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of
Clause 3 (iii} (a), (b} and (c) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not

commented upon.

(iv)  Inouropinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185
and 186 of the Act are applicable and hence not commented upon.

{v) The Company has not accepted deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under.

{vi}  Tothe best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not prescribed the
maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the product / services

rendered by the Company.

(vii} {a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing
the undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, excise duty, custom duty, service tax, value added tax, sales tax, goods and
service tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with appropriate
authorities,

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, no undisputed amounts payable as at March
31, 2018 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the recon;gg
of the Company examined by us, there are no dues of income tax, service tax angée
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute,

Independent Auditor’s Report on Financial Statements of
Pahal Financial Services Private Limited for the year ending on March 31, 2018
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Chartered Accountants

(viil} Based on aur audit procedure and the information and explanations given by the management,

(ix)

{xi}

{xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

{xv}

(xvi)

we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to Financial
Institutions, Banks, Debenture holders or Government,

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
raised any money by way of Initial Public Offer or Further Public Offer, hence not commented
upon. Further, monies raised by the Company by way of term loans were applied for the
purpose for which those were raised, though idle/surplus funds which were not required for
the immediate utilization were gainfully invested in liquid assets payable on demand.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company
or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year

under audit.

The company being private limited company, provisions of Section 197, read with Schedule V
to the Act are not applicable. Therefore the provisions of clause 3(ii} of the Order are not
applicable to the Company, hence not commented upon.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii)
of the order are not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and expianations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has issued shares under private placement during the
year as per provisions of Section 42 of the Act and the amount raised have been utilised for the

purpose for which the same were raised.

in our opinien and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.
Accordingly, the reporting requirement of paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, we report that the company has
registered under Section 45- A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For Manubhai & Shah LiP
Chartered Accountants
{CAI Firm Reg.}lo. 106041W/W100136

S

Date: May 3, 2018 {i. D. Shah)
Partner
Place: Ahmedabad Membership No.: 100116

Independent Auditor's Report on Financial Statements of
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Manubhai & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

[Annexure referred to in paragraph 2(f) under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
section of our report on financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 to the members of
Pahal Financial Services Private Limited]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reperting of Pahal Financial Services
Private Limited (“the Company”), as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
hased on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {'ICAY).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in

all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

L
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Manubhai & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the relfability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those pdlicies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accufateiy and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the

finrancial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal contro! stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Manubhai & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Reg. . 106041W/W100136

A bty

[

Date: May 3, 2018 {J. D. Shah)
Partner
Place: Ahmedabad Membership No.: 100116

Independent Auditor's Report on Financial Statements of
Pahal Financial Services Private Limited for the year ending on March 31, 2018 Page 7 of7



Pahal Financial Services Private Limited

CiN-HI6591
Balance Sh

0GI11994PTC082668
eet as at March 31, 2018

{Amount in X)

. Note As at As at
Particutars
No. March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
i EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{1} Shareholders' Funds
{a} Share Capital 3 1590 29 440 143156 110
(b)Y  Reserves and Surplus 4 1387 18172 i4 34 32008
B : 337747612 2866281138
(2) Non-current Liabilities
{a) tongTerm Borrowings 5 1003673771 4584 34 854
{b} OtherLong Term Liabilities 6 294585 -
(c} long Term Provisions 7 8296 897 16733523
101 22 65 253 47 51 68 377
{3} Current Liabilities
{a} ShortTerm Borrowings 8 40649194 37871820
{b) Trade Payables
Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises - .
Dues to Others 12018831 5392828
{c} Other Current Liabilities 6 96 57 84 059 86 52 92 956
{d) Short Term Provisions 7 12652227 14 13 507
103 1114 311 1009971 111
Total 2381127176 177 17 67 606
il ASSETS
{1) Non-current Assets
{a) Property, Piant & Equipment 9 5490520 5339753
{b) intangible Assets 10 794 962 1157957
{c) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 11 26120136 1290161
{d} Long Term Loans and Advances 12
(i} Portfolio Loans 512873058 14 31 47 906
(ii} Others 91 49042 3123961
{e} Other Non-Current Assets i3 6 69 08 449 45602 889
6213 36 167 199662627
{2} Current Assets
{a} Trade Receivables 14 1548 547 1354000
{b) Cash and Bank balances 15 279291335 41 09 57 416
(c) Short Term Loans and Advances 12
(i) Portfolio Loans 1419977547 1102977 876
{ii) Others 26733146 35511628
{d) Other Current Assets 13 32240434 21304 059
17597 91 009 1572104979
Total 2381127 176 1771767 606
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial 1to 39
statements
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board (

For Manubhai & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
{CAIl Firm RegZNb. 106041W/W100136

D

e S WYV
Kartik 5. Mehta Purvi 1, Bhavesr

Managing Director Managing Director
BGIN. 02 833?2 ‘ DIN,02102740

V’} -,;}.
Nikita Sharma
Company Secsetary

{1. D. Shah)
Partner
Membership No. 100116
Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 3, 2018

Chintan Desai

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 3, 2018




Pahal Financial Services Private Limited
CIN:US5910GI1994PTC082668
Statement of Prafit and Loss for the year ended on March 31, 2018

{Amount in X}
. Note Year ended Year ended
Particulars
No. March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
I Revenue from Operations 16 393138354 36 96 65 869
Il Otherincome 17 96 19 780 9607 775
il Total Revenue {1+11} 40 27 58 134 379273644
IV Expenses:
Finance Costs ig8 23 16 69 259 219968353
Employee Benefits Expenses 19 99504 298 7 44 58 004
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 9&10 19 47 407 16 48 467
Other £xpenses 20 4 4004 196 38401417
Provisions & Write offs 21 11 59 40788 14434030
Total Expenses 49 30 65 948 348910271
V Profit / {Loss) Before Tax {ill - IV} {9 03 07 814) 30363373
VI Tax expense:
{1) Current Tax - 11415000
{2) Short provision of tax refating to eatlier years 190178 627 556
(3} Deferred Tax Adjustment -Charge/(Credit) 11 {248 29975) {545 899}
Total tax expense {2 46 39 797} 114 96 657
VIE Profit / {Loss) for the year (V- Vi) (6 56 68 017) 18866717
VIt Earning / (Loss) per share
Basic 22 {5.45) 1.83
Diluted 22 (5.45) 1.83
[nominal vaiue of share X 10 {March 31, 2017: X 10}}
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial 1to 39
statements P
As per our report of even date for and on behalf of the Board
For Manubhai & Shah LLP 8

Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Reg. N96’106041W/W100136

r
___,fi\ % :";f,,..}f““ """" -

{J. D. Shah}

Partner

Membership No. 100116
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: May 3, 2018

Kartik 5. Mehta

Managing Director

DIN. 02083342
NI

g%ién Desai

Chief Financial Cfficer

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 3, 2018

Purvi J; Ebg,ysaw-""“"”)

Managing Director
DIN.G2102740

1

Nikita Sharma
Company Secretary




Pahal Financial Services Private Limited
CIN:U65910GI1994PTCO82668
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2018

(Amount in %)

Particutars

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Year ended
March 31, 2017

A Cash flow from operating activities

Profit / {Loss) Before Tax (903 07 814) 30363373
Adjustments for :

Depreciation and Amertization 1947 407 16 48 467
Profit on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment { 5030} -
Empolyee Stock Compensation Expense 262000 144000
Provision on Standard, Non Performing Assets & Managed Portfolio 2896183 6555276
Assets Written off {Loans) 1130 44595 7878 754
Operating profit before working capital changes 27837351 4 65839870
Movements in working capital :

Increase/{decrease) in Other liabilities & provisions 2 46 62 090 (178 11824)
increase/(decrease) in Trade Payable 65 26 004 {1817 388)
Decrease / {increase) in Loans and advances {7956 13 741) (17 45 59 507)
Decrease / {increase) in Trade receivables (194547} {7 26702}
Decrease / (increase) in Other assets {109 36 375) { 38 40 830)
Decrease / (increase) in Margin money deposits 28586523 10 40 166
Cash used in operations (71 90 32 695) (1511 26 215)
Direct taxes paid {net of refunds) (15 92 455} {15053 481)
Net cash used in operating activities (A) (72 06 25 150) (16 61 79 696)
Cash flow from investing activities :

Purchase of fixed assets (17 36 649) {28 93 948)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 6500 -
Net cash generated / (used) in investing activities (B) (17 30 149) {28 93 948}
Cash flow from financing activities :

Proceeds from issuance of Equity & Preference Shares at Premium 122499690 800004000
Dividend paid during the year (49 63 922) (5064 642)
Tax paid on Dividend {10 10 558) {908 785)
Shart-term borrowings and current maturity (net} (21183 128) 81342837
Long term Borrowings {net) 545238917 1597 28 004
Net cash generated from financing activities (C} 640581301 315097434
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A)+(B)+{C) (817 73 998) 14 6023 790
Cash and cash equivatents as at the beginning of the year 355682823 209659033
Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year (Refer Note 15} 273508 825 3556 82 823




Pahal Financial Services Private Limited

CIN:UB5910G11994PTCD82668

Cash Flow Statement for the vear ended March 31, 2018

Notes:

{i} The cash flow statement has been prepared under indirect method as per Aceounting Standard - 3 "Cash Flow Statement”.

- ry
(i Components of cash & cash equivalents at the year end sat As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
“Cash o hand Comm 506029 971578
Bafance with banks in current accounts 263738626 1647 10 845
Deposit with maturity less than 3 months G664 170 19 00 00 000
Total 27 3508 825 3556 82 823
{ii¥) Figures in brackets represent outflows.
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements (Note No. 1 to 39)
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For Manubhai & Shah LLP A
Chartered Accountants ~ :
[CAl Firm Reg. yﬁ. 106041W/W100136 Kartik S. Mehta Purvi J. M
5 bt gj‘ o Managing Director Managing Director

im0

DIN. 02083342 DIN.02102740

{4. D, Shah) s

Partner Chintan Desai Nikita Sharma
Membership No, 100116 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Ahmedabad Place: Ahmedabad

Date: May 3, 2018 Date: May 3, 2018
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2.1

2.2
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(a)

{v)
{c)

{d)
(e)

{f)

Company Qverview:

Pahal Finantial Services Private Limited (herein after referred to as ‘the Company’) is a company incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Aet, 1956. The company is non-deposit accepting Non-Banking Financial
Company {'NBFC-ND') registered with the Reserve Bank of India {RBi} under Section 45-1A of the RBt Act, 1934
and has got cfassified as a Non-Banking Financial Company- Micro Finance Institution (NBFC— MFI') vide
registration no. B.0100551 with effect from January 29, 2014.

The Company is primarily engaged in business of providing micro finance services by way of loans to women who
are organized as Joint Liability Groups ('1LG") and individuals in the urban areas of Gujarat, Maharashtra, Madhya

Pradesh & Rajasthan.

in addition to the core business of providing micro finance, the company uses its distribution channel to provide
certain other financial products and services to members,

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies :

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements :

Fhese financial statements are prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting principles in india
{GAAP) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except interest on loans classified as non
performing assets, which is accounted for on realisation basis. GAAP comprises mandatory accounting standards
notified undet Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read together with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, Companies {Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and the provisions of the RBI
as applicable as per Master Directions - Non-Banking Finacial Company -Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit
taking Company {Reserve Bank] Directions, 2016 issued vide Notification No. DNBR.PD.007/03.10.119/2016-17
dated September 1, 2016, as amended time to time {"the NBFC Master Directions, 2016). The accounting policies
have been consistently applied hy the Company except where a newly issued Accounting Standard is indtially
adopted or a revision to an existing Accounting Standards requires a change in accounting policy hereto in use.

Use of Accounting Estimates ;

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting principies in india
{GAAP) requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets
and Habifities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of financial statements and the reported
amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

Revenue Recognition :

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the ecanomic benefits will flow to the Company and
the revenue can be reliably measured.

Interest income on loan given is recognized under the internal rate of return, or IRR, method. This method of
accounting matches the recognition of financial expenses, showing an egual treatment of income and expenses.
Further, income on Non Performing Assets is recognized only when realized and any such interest income
recognised before the assets became non performing and remaining unrealized is reversed,

Loan processing fees callected from members are recognized in the period of realisation.

Interest income on deposits with banks is recognized on a time proportion accrual basis taking into account the
amount outstanding and the rate appiicabte.

Profit on saie of units of mutual fund / shares is recognized on realisation of profits.

Profit/Premium arising at the time of securitisation of loan portfolio is amartised over the life of the underlying
loan / portfolio / securities and foss arising thereon is accounted immediately. Income from Interest strip {excess
interest spread) is recognized in the statement of profit and loss net off any losses when redeemed in cash,
Interest retained under assignment of loan receivables is recognized on reslization basis over the life of
underlying foan portfolio.

All the other income is recognised on accrual basis.
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2.4
(a)

(b)

{e)
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()

{b)

2.6
{a)

(b)

2.7

(a}
(b)

2.8

2.9
(a)

{b)

Property, plant and equipment:
Afl Property, plant & eguipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment

losses, if any. The cost comprises the purchase price and all incidental costs related to acquisition and bringing
the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on the Straight tine method over the useful lives of assets as prescribed
under Part C of Schedule [} of the Companies Act, 2013 which is also as per the useful fife of the assets estimated
by the management.

Fixed assets costing up to{S,OOO/— individually are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

Intangible Assets:
An intangible asset is recognised, only where it is probahle that future economic benefits attributable to the asset

will accrue to the enterprise and the cost can be measured reliably. Intangibles are stated at cost, less
accumuiated amortization and impairment losses, if any.
Software cost related to computers is capitalized and amortized using the straight-line method over a period of

three years.

impairment :

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment
based on internat/external facters. On such indication, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated and if
such estimation is fess than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. in assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset.

After impairment, depreciaticn is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful
fife.

investiments:
Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value, on an individual investment basis.

Long term investments are carried at cost less provision for diminution, other than of temporary nature, in value

of such investments.

Borrowing cost
All borrowing cost are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing cost include interest and other costs

incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings.

Employee Benefits :

Defined Contribution Plan:
Empioyee benefits in the form of Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance Contribution are defined

contributian scheme and the contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the
contributions to the respective funds are due.

Defined Benefit Plan:

Gratuity liability for eligible employees is defined benefit obligation and are provided for on the basis of an
actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year, Cbligation is
measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows using discounted rate that is determined by
reference to market yields at the Balance Sheet date on Government Securities whete the currency and terms of
the Government Securities are consistent with the currency and estimated terms of the defined benefit
obligation. Actuarial gains/losses are immedizately taken to Statement of Profit and Loss.
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2.11

(a)

(b}
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{a)

(b)

2.13
(a}

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

Leases:
Where the Company is the lessee :
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item,

are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of

Profit and Loss.

Income Taxes :
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax.

Current income tax
Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year. Provision is

made for income tax annually based on the tax liability computed, after considering tax allowances and
exemptions under the income Tax Act, 1961

Deferred Tax liability/ Asset

Deferred income taxes refiect the impact of timing differences between the taxable income and accounting
income originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred taxis
measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax labifities are recognised for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
deductible timing differences only to the extent that there is reasenable certainty that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. In situations where the Company
has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is
virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realised against future taxable profits.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The Company writes-down the
carrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as
the case may be, that sufficient future taxabie income will be avaifable against which deferred tax asset can be
realised. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as
the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that
an outfiow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be
made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to
settle the abligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent Liabilities are nat recognized but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent Assets are neither recognized
nor disclosed in the financiaf statements.

Classification and Provision Policy for Loan Portfolio:

Loans to JEG Portfolio
Loans to JLG Portfolic is classified in accordance with the NBFC Master Directions, 2016. Classification of loan

along with the percentage of provision made on such loans is as under;

Classification Arrear Period % of Provision
Standard Asset Overdue* up to 30 days Refer Note 1 & 2
Non Perfarniing Assets Overdue* for more than 90 days and less 50%

than 180 days
Loss Assets Overdue* for more than 180 days Written off
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Note 1:
"Overdue’ refers to interest and/or instalment remaining unpaid form the day it hecame receivable.

Note 2:
The overall provision for loans to JLG is made as per the provision prescrined in the Non -Banking Finance
Company- Micro Finance Institution {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2011 ('NBFC- MFi Directions').These directions
require the total provisions for Overall loans to be higher of (a)1% of the outstanding loan portfolio or {b}50% of
the aggregate loan instalment which are overdue for more than 90 days and less than 180 days,

(b} Loans other than ILG Loans
Loans and advance, other than foans with ILG are classified in accordance with the NBFC Master Directions,
2016.
Classification Arrear Period % of Provision
Standard Assets Up to 180 Days 0.25%
Non Performing Assets Overdue for 180 days or more Written off
Loss Assets { As identified by Management ) Written off

(c) Assigned Loans:

Provision for losses arising under securitisation arrangements is made as higher of the incurred loss and provision
in relation to overdue receivable subject to the maximum guarantee given in respect of these arrangements.

2.14 Share Based Payments
In case of stock option plan, measurement and disclosure of the employee share-based payment plans is done in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments, issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India as applicable for equity-settled share based payments.
The cost of equity-settled transactions is measured using the intrinsic value method and recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in the “Stock options outstanding account” in reserves. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the company's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The expense or credit recognised in the statement of profit and loss for a period represents
the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in
employee benefits expense.

2.15 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Partly paid equity
shares are treated as fraction of an equity share to the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividends
related to a fully paid
equity share during the reporting year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.16 General

Any other accounting policy not specifically referred to are consistent with generally accepted accounting

principles.
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3
0

(i)

(iii)

Share Capital
Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid- Up Capital:
{Amount in %)
Particulars As at Asat
March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Authorised
1,58,00,000 Equity Shares of T10/- each 1590 00 000D 14 40 00000
{March 31, 2017: 1,44,00,000 Equity Shares of T 10/- each)
60,00,000 Preference Shares of ¥ 10/- each 60000 000 30000009
{March 31, 2017: 30,00,000 Preference Shares of T 10/- each)
: Total 21 90 G0 000 17 4080000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up
1,54,02,944 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each 154029440 113196110
(March 31,2017: 1,13,19,611 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/-each)
45,00,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of T 10/- each 4 50 00 000 30000000
(March 31,2017: 30,00,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 10/-each}
Total 1990 29 440 143196 110

Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at beginning and at the end of the reporting period is as under:

. As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Particulars -
No, of Shares Amountin ¥ No. of Shates Amountin ¥

Equity Shares

At the beginning of the year 11319611 113196110 8819611 88196110

Sweat shares issued during the year 7 50000 7500000 - -

Shares Issued under private placement basis 3333333 33333330 25 00 000 25000000

during the year

Outstanding at the end of the year 15402944 1540 29 440 11319611 113196 110
Preference Shares

At the beginning of the year 30 00 000 30000000 3000000 30000000

Subscribed during the year - 3000000 30000000 - -

Redeemed during the year (1500000) (150 00 000) - ‘ -

Outstanding at the end of the year 45 00 000 450 00 ¢00 3000000 3 00 00 000

Terms / Rights of Shareholders, Dividend and Repayment of Capitak:
Equity Shares
(a} The Company has one class of Equity shares having a par value of  10/-,
{b) Each holder of equity shares is entitled {o one vote per share.
{€) Any dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting. Dividend declared and paid would be in indian rupees.
{d} In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares shall be entitled to receive any of the
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The amount distributed will be in
propaortion to the number of equity shares held by the sharehoiders.
Preference Shares ‘ '
(i} Tranch |- Preference Shares issued to Small industries Development Bank of india {SIDBI)
{a} Details of the Preference shares issued are as under :
> 10,00,000 shares Allotted on October 3, 2013

> 20,00,000 shares Allotted on December 27, 2013
{b}) The Preference share would be redeemable at par as below:

> The company has redeemed 1st Installment of 50% preference shares amounting to Rs. 150 Lakhs during the year

out of proceeds from fresh issue of preference shares in terms of proviso (a) of sub section 2 of Section 55 of

Companies Act, 2013,

> Remaining 50% at the end of 5 years from the date of allotment.
{c} Preference shares carry a fixed cumulative dividend @ 9% per annum.
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{iv) The details of shareholders holding more than 5 % of subscribed share capital as on March 31, 2018 is set out below:

—_

{if} Tranch Il - Preference Shares Issued to Scient Capital Private Limited
(a) Details of the Preference shares issued are as under -
> 30,00,000 shares Allotted on May 31, 2017
{hj The Preference share would be redeemabie at par as below:
> 100% at the end of Z years from the date of allotment,
(c) Preference shares carry a fixed coupon rate of 11.25% semi annual,

Name of Shareholder As 2t March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
No, of Shares % No. of Shares %
Equity Shares
Dia Vikas Capital Private Limited 3333333 21.64% - R
Vimat Khandwala 207% 812 13.50% 2079812 18.37%
Rajesh Khandwala 2079 803 13.50% 2079803 18.37%
Girish N. Patel 11 30 000 7.47% 18 00 000 15.90%
Rajiv G Patel HUF 8 44 358 5.48% - .
Purvi ] Bhavsar 915469 5.94% 540 469 4.77%
Suyash Advisary LLP 820 000 5.32% - -
Kusurn Finserve LLP - - 8 44 359 7.46%
Preference Shares
Smalf Industries Development Bank of India 1500 000 33.33% 3000000 100.00%
Scient Capital Private Limited 3400 000 66.67% - -

As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received from
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

Far details of shares reserved for issue under employee stock option (ESOP) plan of the company, Refer note no. -30,
Reserves and Surplus
(Amount in %)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017
Securities Premium
As per Last Balance Sheet $3110943 38110943
Add: Premium received during the year 6 66 66 660 5 50 G0 000
Closing Balance 1597 77 603 93110943
General Reserve
As per Last Balance Sheet 60 000 60 000
Statutory Reserve*
As per Last Bafance Sheet 12269476 84 96 132
Add: Amount transferred from the surpius balance of profit & loss - 3773343
Closing Balance 12269476 12269476
Surplus
Surplus at the beginning of the year 37847589 22754216
Add: Net Profit / {Loss) after tax transferred from Statement of Profit and Loss {6 56 68 017) 18866717
(27820428} 41620933
Less: Appropriation
Transfer to statutary reserve* - 3773343
Dividend on Equity Shares 22 63922 -
Dividend on Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 27 00 000 -
Tax on dividend 1010556 -
59 74 478 3773343

Surplus / {Deficit) at the end of the year {337 94 908} 37847589
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{Amountin %)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

Stock options outstanding

Opening balance 1 44 000 -
. Additicn during the period 262 060 144000 ..
4 06 000 144000
Total 138718172 14 34 32 008
* As required by Sec 45 - IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
Long Term Borrowings
{Amount in &}
Non- current portion Current Maturities
Particulars As at As at As at As at
March 31,2018 March 31,2017  March 31,2018  March 31,2017
Secured
- (A) Term loans from:
- Banks 10 84 41591 53 12 500 120954764 101041674
- Others 875232180 1854 41188 734860853 648321251
{B) Non Canvertible Debentures 1500 00 690 2176 81 166 67681434 197572530
{C) Vehicle Loan - - - 522098
Unsecured
(D) Sub-crdinate Debt (Tier 1) 11 00 00 G0O 500 00 00C - -
{E) Compulsory Convertible Debentures 60000000 - - -
Total 1003673771 45 84 34 854 92 34 97 052 94 74 57 553

Details of Security, terms of repayment, interest rates and other terms and conditions in respect of Long Term loans are as

under:

Security details

Interest rate

Terms of Repayment

{A] Term Loans;

DCB Bank

Exclusive Charges by way of Hypothication on all
8ook Debts / loan Assets, both present and future
and against pledge of Fixed Deposit of 10% of the
loan amount

1 year MCiR +
2.52%

Principal repayable by 16 equal monthly instaliments
starting from 3rd month of dishursement.,

tDB1 Bank Limited

Exclusive Charges by way of Hypothication on all 110

1 year MCLR +

Principal repayable in 24 equal monthly installments

% of Book Debts / loan Assets, both present and 4.95% with a moratoriam period of 3 months

future and against pledge of Fixed Deposit up to 10%

of the loan amaunt

Fincare Small Finance Bank Limited

Exclusive Charges by way of Hypothication on alf 100 14% Principal repayable in 24 egual monthly installments.

% of Book Debts / loan Assets, both present and
future and against pledge of Fixed Deposit up to
7.50% of the loan amount
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Security details

Interest rate

Terms of Repayment

State Bank of India

Exclusive Hypothication charge over specific pool of
receivables/book debts created out of Bank finance
and against pledge of Fixed Deposit up to 10% of the
loan amount

12.50%

Principal repayable by 36 equal monthly instaliments
starting from next month.

Capital First Limited

Exclusive Charges by way of Hypothication on 110%
to 125% of Book Debts,

13% to 15%

Principal  repayable in 818 equal quarterly
installments commencing after moratorium of 6
Months to 8 quarters after the dishursement.

IFMR Capital Finance Pvt. Ltd.

Exclusive Charges by way of Hypothication on Boak
Debts / loan Assets, both present and future
created/to be created out of loan and against pledge
of Fixed Deposit of 5% to 7.5% of the loan amount

13.65% t0 14.75%

Principal repayable by 18 monthly instaliments.

Mas Financial Services Limited

Exclusive Charges by way of Hypothication on Book
Debts / loan Assets, both present and future
created/to be created out of loan and against pledge
of Fixed Depasit of 0% of the loan amount

14.75%

Principal repayable by 24 equal monthly instaliments
as per Loan sanction Document.

Manappuram Finance Limitad

Exclusive Charges by way of Hypothication on 110%
of Book Debts.

13.75% 10 14.5%

Principal repayable in 12 equal quarterly instaltments
commencing from 3 months after first disbursement.

Reliance Capital Limited

Exclusive Charges by way of Hypothication on Book
Debts / loan Assets, both present and future
created/to be created out of loan and against pledge
of Fixed Deposit of 5% to 7.5% of the loan amount

14.25% to 14.50%

Principal repayabte in 18 equal monthiy instaliments as
per Loan sanction Document.

NABARD Financial Services Limited

Exclusive Charges by way of Hypothication on all 105
% of Book Debts / loan Assets, both present and
future and against pledge of Fixed Depaosit up to 5%
of the loan amount

13.00% p.a.

Principal repayable in 12 egual guarterly installments
commencing from 3 months after first disbursement.

NABSAMMRUDHHI Financial Services Limited

Exciusive Charges by way of Hypothication on all 110
% of Book Debts / loan Assets, both present and
future and against pledge of Fixed Deposit up to 5%
of the ioan amount

13.50% p.a.

Principal repayable in 12 equat quarterly installments
commencing from 3 months after first dishursement.
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Security details Interest rate Terms of Repayment

Profectus Captial Pvt Limited
Exclusive Charges by way of Hypothication on all 110 14.50% p.a Principal repayable in 12 egual monthly installments.

% of Book Debts / loan Assets, both present and
{future and against pledge of Fixed Deposit upto 10%
of the loan amount

Maanaveeya Development & Finance Private Limited

Exclusive Charges by way of Hypothication on all 100 14.40to 14.50%  Principal repayable in 8 equal quarterly installments
% of Book Debts / loan Assets, both present and commencing from 3 months after first disbursement.
future and against pledge of fixed Deposit of 7.50%

10 10% of the loan amount

Hinduja Leyland Finance Limited
Exclusive Charges by way of Hypothication on Book 11.34%to 11.80% Principa! repayable by 24 to 36 monthly installment

Debts / loan Assets, both present and future (Yield)
equivalent to 120% of ican Amount

Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited

Exclusive Charges by way of Hypothication on Book  11.34%to 13%  Principal repayable by 24 equal monthly instaliments
Debts / loan Assets, both present and future as per Loan sanction Document.

created/to be created out of foan and against pledge

of Fixed Deposit of 8% of the loan amount

{B) Non Convertible Debentures

Hinduja Leyland Finance Limited

Exclusive Charges by way of Hypothication on Book 12.78% to 13.9% Principal repayable by 24 monthly instatiment
Debts / loan Assets, both present and future {Yield)

eguivalent to 100% to 110% of Debenture Value,

L & T Financial Services Limited
Exclusive Charges by way of Hypothication on Book 12.15% Principal repayable by 24 monthly instailment

Debts / loan Assets, both present and future {Yield)
equivalent to 100% of Debenture Value.

IFMR FLMPACT MEDIUM TERM MICROFINANCE FUND
£xclusive Charges by way of Hypothication on Book 14,25% Principal repayable at the end of 36 months.

Debts / loan Assets, both present and future {Coupon)
equivalent to 100% of Debenture Value.
(D) Sub ordinate Debt {tier Il)

Capital First Limited 16.90% Principai repayable after 84 months from the date of
receipt,

MAS Financial Services Limited 16.75% Principal repayable after 84 months from the date of
receipt.

(E) Cumpulsory Convertible Debentures
Dia Vikas Capital Private Ltd 15.00% Debentures fully convertible into Equity within 190

years




Pahal Financial Services Private Limited

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2018

6 Other Liabilities:

{Amount in T}
Non Current Current
Particulars As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
Current Maturities of Long Term Debt {Refer Note No 5)
Term Loan .
- From Banks - - 12 09 54 764 1010 41 674
- From Others - - 7348 60853 64 83 21 253
Non Convertible Debenture - - 67681434 197572530
Vehicle Loans - - - 5,22,098
- - 92 34 97052 94 74 57 553
fnterest accrued but not due on borrowings - - 73 83002 47 30 733
Payable towards securitisation and assignment - - 24614 842 55 22 894
Unamortised gain on securitisation 294585 - 3152519 2720278
Statutory dues - - 61 88 453 36 07 517
Others - - 958191 12 53 881
Total 294585 - 96 57 94 059 96 52 92 956
7 Provisions:
(Amount in %)
Long -term Short-term
Particulars As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017 March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Provision for Employee Benefits
Provision for Gratuity 235027 329126 -
2 35027 329126 - -
Other Provisions
-Contingent provision against Standard Assets 3645 965 11 840 10265991 118116
-Provision for Non Performing Assets 42 84 146 16291443 - -
-Provision for Securitised/Managed portfolio 131759 101114 23 86 236 12 85 391
80 61 870 16404 397 12652227 14 13 507
Total 82 96 897 16733523 12652227 1413 507
& Short -Term Borrowings:
{Amount in X)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017
Secured
Working Capital Loan from Bank 40649 184 37871820
Fotal 40649194 37871820

Security details

Interest rate

Terms of Repayment

State Bank of India

Exclusive Hypothication charge over specific pool of
recefvables/book debts created out of Bank finance

MCLR + 3%

Repayable on demand




Pahal Financial Services Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Staterents for the year ended on March 31, 2018
11 Deferred Tax Assets (Net}:

tn accordance with Accounting Standard 22 “Accounting for Taxes on Income”, the Company has Deferred Tax Liabilities of{
25,880/- (March 31, 2017’:{2,04,2{%1/4I and Deferred Tax Assets 0f{2,61,46,016/— (March 31, 2017:¢ 14,94,442/-).

The components of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabifities are as under: {Amount in %)
Particulars As at Charge / (Credit) As at
March 31, 2018 forthe year . . ..March 31, 2017 ..

Deferred Tax Liability

Difference between book and tax depreciation 25 880 {178 401) 204 281
Deferred Tax Liabitity (if) 25 880 ( 178 401) 204281
Deferred Tax Assets

Provision for Non Performing Assets & on managed portfolio 6 54 679 {B35763) 14 94 442
Impact of accumulated losses and unzbsorbed depreciation 254 9% 337 25491 337 -
Deferred Tax Assets (i) 26146016 24651574 14 94 442
Net Deferred Tax Assets (i) - (ii) 26120136 248258975 12 90 161

12 Loans and Advances:
{Amount in X}

Non Current Current
Particulars As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31,2018  March 31, 2017

{i} Partfolio Loans

Unsecured, considered good
Loan given to JLG 46 66 27 556 1029 43 316 1306667534 105 7053 872

Lean given to cehsumer and individuals 3767717¢ 7621704 113310013 45824004
5043 04 766 11 05 65 020 14199 77 547 1102977 876

Unsercured, considered doubtful

Loan given to JLG 85 68 292 32582886 - -
85 68 292 32582886 - -
Total 5128 73 058 14 31 47 906 1419977547 1102977876
{iij Others: {Amount in T)
Non Current Current
Particulars As at As at As at As at

March 31,2018  March 31,2017  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

A. Security Deposits*

Unsecured, Considered good 4017014 - - 28742 605
B. Balance with Government Authorities - - 3872 351192
C. Other Loans and Advance
Unsecured, considered good

Capital Advance 25930 - - B,
Advance Payment of Taxes (Net of Provision) 3157988 1755711 - -
Other deposits 19 48 050 13 68 250 819 000 534800
Receivable on managed portfolio - - 18405 418 -
Loan te Pahal Welfare Trust (Refer Note 31) - - 790000 10 000
Prepaid Expenses - - 11 87 869 3793572
Staff Advances - - 236011 116336
Advance to vendors - - 2177226 339407
QOthers - - 3113749 16 23616
Total 91 49042 3123961 26733146 35511628
* Includes Security deposits held as security against
horrowings

Total {i) + {ii} 522022100 14 62 71 867 14467 10693 11384 89504




Pahal Financial Services Private Limited
Notes forming purt of Financial Staterments for the year ended on March 31, 2018
13 Other Assets:

14

15

{Amount in X}

Nan Current Current

Particulars As at As at As at As at
March 31,2018 March 31, 2017  March 31,2018  March 31, 2017

Term deposits with Banks 6.69.08 449 45602 889 - -
Interest accrued but not due cn portfolio loans - - 317 74377 20417454
Others - - 4 66 057 8 86 605

Total 669 08 449 4 56 02 B89 32240434 213 04 059
Trade Receivables:
particutar As at As at

cuiars
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Outstanding for a six months or less from the date they are due for payment
Unsecured, considered good 15 48 547 13 54 000
Outstanding for more than six months from the date they are due for payment
Unsecured, considered good - -

Total 15 48 547 13 54 000
Cash & Bank Balances:

Non Current Current

Particulars As at As at As at As at

March 31,2018 March 31, 2017  March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash on hand - - 506 029 971978
Balances with banks
- In current accounts - - 2637 38626 16 47 10 845
- in term deposit accounts with maturity less 56 64 170 12 06 00 000

than three months - -

- - 27 3908 825 3556 82 823

Other bank Balances
- In term deposit accounts held as security 669 08 44¢ 4 5602 889 5382510 552 74593
borrowings from banks **
6 63 08 449 45602 839 53 82 510 55274593
Amount disciosed under non current assets (Refer {6 69 08 449) (436 02 889) - -
Note 13)
Total - - 279297 335 41 09 57 416

** Represents margin maney deposits placed to avail term loans from banks and others and as cash coliateral in connection with

securitization transactions.
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Pahat Financial Services Private Limited
Notes forming parl of Finuncial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2018

particulars Year Ended Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
16 Revenue from Operations:
Interest income on:
Portfoiio Loans 337151254 325708 704
Others™ 92 45 083 13678247
: 3463 96337 3393 86 951
Processing Fees 312 82 460 158 69 846
Other Operating Revenue
Income from securitization fassignment of Loans 1872978 93 53 036
Recovery from loans written off 5007283 101812
Others 8579 296 4954124
Total 393138354 36 96 65 869

* Represents interest on margin money deposits placed to avail term loans from banks & others and as cash
collateral in connection with securtisation transactions.

17 Other income:

Gain on sale of units of Mutual Fund & Shares {Net} 91 31264 9021982
Others 4 88516 585782
Total 96 19 780 96 07 775

18 Finance Costs:

Interest expnese on

Term Loans from Banks and others 16 40 65 281 161920126
Debentures 42021516 37312829
Cash Credit 482314 603 068
206569111 1998 36 018

Other Borrowing Cost
Loan Processing Fees 16759013 13846648
Debenture issue Expenses 81 31622 4570429
Securitisation Charges 208513 17 15 258
25100148 20132335
Total 231669259 2199 68 353

19 Employee Benefits Expense :

Salaries & wages 93906891 699 09 527
Contribution to provident & other funds 5098372 4236328
Employee stock option scheme expense 2 62 000 1 44 000
Staff Weilfare expense 237035 168149

Total 99504 298 74458 004




Pahal Financial Services Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2018

particulars Year Ended Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
20 Other Expenses:
Rent 7399683 57 24 043
Rates & Taxes 3922323 24 62 024
Ansurance e 593 842 555125
Repair and Maintenance 241781 213962
Electricity Expenses 881132 698312
Stamp Duty and Filling Fees 234918 272219
Legal and Professional fees 35 72 40% 5150094
Software Maintenance Charges 38 42 003 3591 381
Travelling and Conveyance 12454 48] 102 44 353
Telephone and Postage 2057 194 1737254
Bank Charges 4 98 069 71478
Directors Siting fees 262 500 205 000
Auditors' remuneration® 348200 505300
Printing and Stationery 1773 098 14 09 692
Customer Credit information Fees & KYC Charges 1493974 1178763
Advertisement expenses 145501 227953
Entertainment expense 87501 7734061
Listing Fees & other charges (Debentures) 80948 382681
Miscellaneous expenses 3227119 29 98 692
Total 44004 196 3 8401417

*Auditors' remuneration comprises of the following:
Payment to Auditors:

- as Statutory Auditor 225000 200000

- as Tax Auditor 40 000 40 000

- for other services 83 200 2 65300

Total 348 200 505 300
21 Provisions and Write offs:

Contingent Provision / {Reversal of Provision} for Standard Assets 13782000 (8272107
(Refer Note - 29)
Provision on Securitised/Managed portfolio 11 21.4%0 473 880
Provision for Non Performing Assets {12007 297) 14353503
Asset Written Off 11 30 44 595 78 78 754

Total 11 59 40 788 14434030




Pahal Financial Services Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2018

22 Earning Per Share (EPS):

23

24

{

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year which s as under :

(Amount in )
Particulars Unit 2017-18 2016-17
: : - Basic and Diluted -

Basic
Profit / {Loss) available to Equity Sharehalders (6 56 68 017) 18866717
Weighted average of number of equity shares outstanding during in Nos, 12054086 10312762
the year
Basic Earning per share of face value o@ 10 each 4 (5.45) 1.83
Diluted
Effect of dilution: Stock options granted under £SOP 300000 1009000
Adjusted net profit as per statement of Profit & Loss (654 06 017} 18010717
Weighted average of number of equity shares for diluted EPS 123 54086 10412762
calculation
Diluted Earning per share of face value oﬁ! 10 each % (5.45) 183

While calculating dilutive EPS becomes anti dilutive, hence basic EPS becomes diluted £PS

Company has issued compulsory canvertible debenures during the current financial year. Currently for calculation of
diluted EPS, no. of equity shares to be issued at the time of conversion based on future financial information. Hence,
compulsary convertible debentures are not included in caiculation of difuted EPS.

{i) Contingent liabilities not provided for: {Amount in X)
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Cash coflaterals given and cutstanding for the assigned loans 12612999 97 14 353
Cash collaterals given and outstanding pursuant to service provider agreement 5985 818 4798 294
Preference Dividend in arrears 14 05 479 -
{if) Commitment not provided for: {Amount in %}
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Commitments related to loans sanctioned but undrawn 15 00 00 000 200000900
Employee benefits:

Disclosures envisaged in Accounting Standard {AS} 15 — Employee Benefits as given below:

Defined Benefit Plan:

The Company has funded defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of
service is eligible for a gratuity on separation at 15 days basic salary {last drawn satary) for each completed year of
service.

Consequent to the adoption of AS 15 ‘Employee Benefits' specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with rule 7 of Companies{Accounts) Rules, 2014, the following disclosures have been made as reguired by the

standard:
(Amount in %}

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017
Net employee benefit expense recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss:
Current service cost 642734 751788
interest cost on benefit obligation 161044 135731
Expected return on plan assets {138 598) { 55061}
Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognised in the year (430153} {149875)

Net benefit expense 235027 678 593




Pahal Financial Services Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financiol Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2018

()

25

(Amount in )

Particulars

Year ended

Year ended

March 31,2018 March 31, 2017

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit ohligation are as follows:
Opening defined benefit obligation

~Interest cost

Current service cost

Actuarial {gains} / losses on obligation
Benefits Paid

Closing defined benefit obligation

Changes in Plan Asset:

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Year
Expected Returns on Plan Assets

Employer's Contribution

Benefits Paid

Actuarial Gains/ {Losses)

Fair Vatue of Plan Asset at the end of the year**

Amount Recognised in Balance Sheet
Defined benefit cbligation

Fair value of plan assets

Plan asset / (liability)

2361356 1707 311
- 161044 135 731

642734 751798
{488017) {180922)
{152 645) ( 52 562)
2524 472 23 61 356
2032230 742 905

138598 59 061

329126 13 13 873
(152 645) { 52562)
{ 57 864) ( 31047)
22 89 445 20 32 730
35 24 472 2361 356
22 89 445 2032 230
(235027) {329126)

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obfigation for the Company’s plans are shown below:

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Discount Rate per annum 7.71% 6.82%
7.00% 7.00%

Expected satary increase per annum

Attrition rate For service 4 years and below

30% p.a. & For service 4 years
and above 1% p.a.

indian Assured Lives Mortality
{2006-08) Ultimate

Mortality Rate

** The Plan Asset is managed by LIC of India.

For service 4 years and below 30%
p.a. & For service 4 years and abave
1% p.a.

Indfan Assured Lives Mortality {2006-
08} Ultimate

Defined Contribution Plan:

Contribution to Provident Fund and ESIC are included in note 19 "Employee benefits expense” includes 1’50,98,372

(P.Y.{ 42,36,328/-) being expenses debited under defined contribution plan.

Segment Information:

The Company is engaged in the business of providing micro finance services by way of loans to women who are
organized as Joint Liability Groups (JLG’) and individuals in the urban areas of Gujarat, Maharashtra, Rajasthan and
Madhya Pradesh, Thus, the Company has only one reportable segment. Further, the Company operates in a single

geographical segment i.e. domestic,
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{iii)

27

28

29

Related Party Disclosures:

Related party disclosures as required under the Accounting Standard {AS) - 18 on "Related Party Disclosures” notified

in Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 are given helow:

Name of the related parties and description of refationship :

Description of Relationship Designation

Name of the Related Party

Managing Director
Managing Director
Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary

Key Management Personnel

Mr. Kartik Mehta
Ms. Purvi ] Bhavsar
Mr, Chintan Desai
Ms. Nikita Sharma

Details of Transactions with Related Parties during the year: (Amount in %)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

Managerizl Remuneration

Ms, Purvi } Bhavsar 3751200 3751200

Mr. Kartik Mehta 3751200 3751200

Remuneration

Mr. Chintan Desai 1951044 1731216

Ms.Nikita Sharma 399558 333264

Sweat equity issued during the year

Ms. Purvi ] Bhavsar 3750000 -
3750000 -

Mr. Kartik Mehta

Leases

Registered office and branch office premises are obtained on operating lease. The branch office premises are
generally rented on canceilable term for 11 months. The registered office premise has been obtained on 2 lease term
of 5 years without any escalation clause. The said lease is non-cancellable for a period of 2 years. There are no
subleases. Lease Payments during the year are charged to statement of profit and loss.

Particulars 2017-18 20616-17
Operating lease expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss {both 7399693 5724 043
canceliable and non-cancellable leases)
Minimum lease cbligation for non-cancellable lease
Not later than one year 864 000 11 87 500
5 04 Q00 Nit

Later than one year but less than five years

Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

There are no amount that needs to be disclosed in accordance with the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006 (the "MSME") pertaining to Micro or small enterprise. For the year ended March 31, 2018, no
supplier has intimated the company about its status as Micro or small enterprise or its registration with the

appropriate authority under MSMED,

{Amount in %)

Movement of Provisions during the year:
Particutlars Standard Non Performing Securitised
Assets Assets Portfolio
Balance at the beginning 129957 16291443 1396 505
Reversed During the Year - {12007 297) -
Recognized during the Year 13782000 - 1121 480
Balance at the End 13911557 42 84 146 2517 895




Pahal Financial Services Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2018

30 The members have authorized the board ta issue and allot 5,00,000 Equity Shares under the ‘Pahal Sweat Equity Plan

31

32

2016' of the company as Sweat Equity on face value, for the intangible value additions made by promoter
directors of the Company on such terms and conditions as may be fixed or determined by the Board in
accordance with the provisions of the Act issued by the relevant authority.

The company has also granted 2,00,000 Equity shares to employees under 'Pahal Employee Stock Option Plan'.

Details of the same as follows:
During the year ended March 31, 2018, the following stock option grants were in operation:

Particulars Tranche | Tranche Hl
Date of Grant QOctober 1, 2016 fanuary 22, 2018
Date of approval from members in AGM September 23, 2016 September 23, 2016
No. of options granted 100 000 200000
Method of Settlement Equity Equity
Graded Vesting period:
Day folflowing the completion of 12 months 30.00% 30.00%
from grant
Day following the completion of 36 months 30.00% 30.00%
from grant
Day following the completion of 60 months 40.00% 40.00%
from grant
Exercise Period 36 months from the respective 36 months from the respective

date of vesting date of vesting
Vesting conditions Continuous service & Continuous service & performance
performance gradation gradation

Average remaining contractual life (Years) 3.5 4.83
Average exercise price per option (Rs.} 26 26
Average intrinsic value of option (Rs.) 32 30

Particulars Year ended on  Year ended on

March 31, 2018 March 3%, 2017

Pahal Employee Stock Option Plan

Options outstanding at beginning of the year 100000 -
Granted during the year 2 00000 1060060
Options outstanding at end of the year 300000 100 000
Particuiars As at As at
March 33, 2018  March 31, 2017
Stock options outstanding (gross) 14 00 000 6004000
Deferred compensation cost outstanding S 94 000 456000
Stock options outstanding (Net) 4 06 500 144 000

Loan given to Pahal Welfare Trust:

The Company has given interest free collateral free loan to an employee benefit trust under the Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme to provide financial assistance to its employees to purchase equity shares of the Company under
such scheme. The loan is repayable by the trust under a back to back arrangement by the trust with the employees of

the Company.

Previous year figures:
The previous year's figures have been regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary to facilitate

comparability with current year's figures.




Pahal Financial Services Private Limited
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33 Loan Portfolio and Provisioning for Standard and Non Performing Assets:
{Amount in X}

Classification

Particulars
Standard Assets Non Performing Assets Total

Portfalio Loan Quistanding {Gross) 192 42 82 313 8568292 193 28 50 605
-~ {121 35 42 896) (3-25-82 886) - {124 61 25 782}

Provision for Standard and Non performing 13911956 42 84 146 18196102
Assets {129957) (16291 443) (164 21 400)
Portfolio Loan Qutstanding (Net) 19103 70 357 42 84 146 191 46 54 503
(12134 12 939} {16291 443) {122 97 04 382}

{Figures in brackets represent numbers of previous years.)

34 Capital to Risk Assets ratio (CRAR} (Computed as per method prescribed by RBY)

St. Particulars As at As at

No. March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
() CRAR (%) [{ii) + (#i}] 24.05 24,75

{if} CRAR- Tier | Capital{%)} 12.95 15.01

(Hi) CRAR- Tier Il Capital{%) 11.10 5.74

{iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-Il capital (In B 11 G0 GO 000 5 00 00 000

35 The Company has no exposure to the real estate sector direcly or indirectly in the current and previous year.
36 The company has not disbursed any loans against security of gold.

37 Details of Average Interest paid on Borrowings and charged on loans given to JLG:
The details of Average Interest Rate on Borrowings and charged on lcans during the Financial Year 2017-18 is as under:

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Average Interest Rate on Loans given (A) 23.31% 24.60%
Average effective cost of Borrowing (B} 15.58% 16.44%
Net Interest Margin (A-B) 7.73% 8.16%

38 Assignment [/ securitization of foans:
During the year the Company has sold leans through direct assignment / securitisation. The information on direct

assignment activity of the Company as an ariginatoer is as shown below:
{(Amount in %)

R Year ended March Year ended
{s) Particufars
31,2018 March 31, 2017
Total number of loans assigned/securitised 26 140 9761
Total book value of loans assigned/securitized 4037 45 8589 1359 71552
Safe consideration received for loans assigned/ securitized 383776084 1404 95 453
Income recognised in the statement of profit and oss 1146 418 91 53 035
Balance of loans assigned /securitized as at the balance sheet date 297299621 32263 665

Cash Coflateral provided and outstanding as at the balance sheet date 12612999 97 14 353




Pahal Financial Services Private Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2018

{Amount in %)

(b} Sr. No. particulars Year ended March Year ended
31,2018 March 31, 2017
1 No. of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitisation transactions ;
2
2 Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored 297299621 3 22 63 665

by the NBFC
3 Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with MRR as on the date of balance sheet:

a) Off-baiance sheet exposures
- First loss - -
- Others - .
b) On-balance sheet exposures
- First loss 12612999 97 14353
- Others - .
4 Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than MRR
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own securitisations
- First loss
- Others - -
it} Exposure to third party securitisations
- First loss
- Others - .
b) On-bhalance sheet exposures
i} Exposure to own securitisations
- First loss
- Others . .
ii) Exposure to third party securitisations
- First loss
- Others - -

39 As required in terms of paragraph 13 of Non-Banking Financial {Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential
Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007, the following information is given.

1. Liabilities side
{Amount in X)

Sr.  Particulars Total Amount Amount Overdue
No. Outstanding
1} Loans and Advances availed by the non- banking financial company inclusive

of interest accrued thereon and not paid

a) Debentures:
- Secured 217681434 -

- Unsecured 6 G0 00 00G -
{other than failing within the meaning of public deposits*)
b} Deferred Credits - -
¢) Term Loans 153 94 8% 388 -
d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing - .
e) Commercial Paper
f}  Other Loans
Sub ordinate debt 110000 066 -
Working capital facility 40649 194 -
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the yeor ended on March 31, 2018

. Assets side

{Amount in X}

Sr.  Particulars

Amount

2} Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other than those included in (4} below]

a) Secured
© b) Unsecured - -
3) Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC activities:
i Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors
al  Financiat lease
h)  Operating lease
Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
a)  Assets on hire
b} Repossessed Assets
Other loans counting towards AFC activities :
a)  lLoans where assets have been repossessed
b}  Loans other than (a) above

fi

4} Break- up of investments:
Current Investments

i Quoted

i Shares
a) Equity

b)  Preference
i Debenture and Bonds
fit  Units of Mutual Funds
iv  Government Securities
v Others
Il Unquoted
i Shares
a) Equity
b} Preference
il Debenture and Bonds
il Units of Mutual Funds
iv  Government Securities
v Others
Long Term Investments
i Quoted
i Shares
a) Equity
b} Preference
ii Debenture and Bends
it Units of Mutual Funds
iv  Government Securities
v Others
IF Unguoted
I Shares
a} Equity
b} Preference
i Debenture and Bonds
i Units of Mutual Funds
iv  Government Securities
v Dthers

45 363
19328405 242

/’"’\\'N-

AT

AN
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Notes forming part of Financiol Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2018

5) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in {2) and {3} above ; {Amount in %)
Category Amount net of Provision
Secured Unsecured Total
1 Related Parties
a)  Subsidiaries .
b} Companies in the same group - .
¢} Other related parties - .
2 Other than related parties - 191 46 54 503 19146 54 503
Total - 181 46 54 503 191 46 54 503

6} Investor group-wise classification of all investments {current and long term) in shares and securities {(both quoted and

uhguoted):
{Amount in X)
Category Market Value/  Book Value (Net of
Break up or Provisions}
Fait Value or
NAV

1 Related Parties
a}  Subsidiaries
b} Companies in the same group
¢} Otherrelated parties

2 Other than related parties

Total - -

7} Other information {Amount in X)

Particulars
(i} Gross Non- Performing Assets
a2)  Related Parties
b}  Other than related parties 8568 292
(i) Net Non- Performing Assets
a) Related Parties
by Other than related parties 42 84 146
{iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of Debts -
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For Manubhai & Shah LLP B
Chartered Accountants b
ICAl Firm Reg. No. 106041W/W100136

gy

=t

Kartik S. Mehta Purvi ]_._ghavsar—*"‘“
Managing Director Managing Director
DIN. 02083342 DIN.02102740

Chintan Desai Nikita Sharma
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: May 3, 2018

1. D, Shah}

Partner

Membership No. 100116
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: May 3, 2018




Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of Pahal Financial Services Private
Limited having CIN — U65910GJ1994PTC082668 will be held on Friday, 17*" August 2018 at 10:30 A.M at its
Registered Office situated at First Floor -2, City Mall, Nr. Rajpath Club, Opp. Madhur Hotel, S. G Highway,
Bodakdev, Ahmedabad - 380059 to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:
Item No. 1: Adoption of Financial Statements:

To receive, consider and adopt the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31t March 2018,
including the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended
on that date together with Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

Item No.2: Ratification of appointment of Statutory Auditor

To ratify the appointment of Statutory Auditor of the Company, and to fix their remuneration and in this regard,
to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act 2013 (the Act) read with Companies {Audit and auditors} Rules 2014, { including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof , for the time being in force} and pursuant to the resolution passed by
the members at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 25" July 2014, the appointment of M/s
Manubhai & Shah LLP (Previously known as M/s Manubhai & Shah) Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration
no. 106041W/W100136) who hold office till the conclusion of the 9'" AGM be and is hereby ratified for the F.Y
2018-19 at such remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and
the Auditors”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby authorized to do all such
acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to give
this resolution”

Special Business:

Item No. 3:- Re-appointment of Mr. Ambalal B Panchal as the Independent Director of the Company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 149 and 152 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification (s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), Mr. A.B Panchal
(DIN: 00829668), who was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for 2(two) years was due



for re-appointment, and in this respect he has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria for
independence as provided in section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and is eligible for re-appointment,
be and is hereby re-appointed as Independent Director of the company who shall hold office for 1 (one) year
w.e.f 30™ July 2018.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby authorized to do all such
acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effort to give
this resolution.”

Item No. 4:- Increase the authorized share capital and amendment to the Memorandum of Association of
the company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as a Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 61 read with section 64 and all other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act 2013 (including any amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof)
and the relevant rules made thereunder, the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby
accorded to increase the existing Authorised Share Capital of the Company from Rs. 29,40,00,000/- (Rupees
Twenty Nine Crore Forty Lacs Only) divided into 1,99,00,000 (One Crore Ninety Nine Lacs Only) Equity Shares
of Rs. 10/- each and 95,00,000 (Ninety Five Lacs Only) Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each to Rs. 32,50,00,000/-
(Rupees Thirty Two Crore and Fifty Lacs Only) divided into 2,30,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each and
95,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each.

RESOLVED FURHTER THAT consequent to the increase in the Authorised Share Capital, Clause V of the
Memorandum of Association of the Company is hereby altered as under:-

v. The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 32,50,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Two Crore and Fifty Lacs
Only) divided into 2,30,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each and 95,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do all such
acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to the above resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised to delegate all or any of its
power herein conferred to any Committee or directors/director/any officer(s)/Authorised Representative(s)
of the Company to give effect to the aforesaid resolution.”

Item No. 5:- Issue of Equity Shares on Preferential allotment/Private Placement Basis:

To consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without modification, the following Resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 42 and 62 (1) ( c) and other applicable provisions, if
any, of Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014 and
Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules 2014 (Collectively, Companies Act 2013) (including
any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the Memorandum and Article
of Association of the Company, Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (“FEMA?”), the FDI Policy read with
the circular, rules, regulations, notifications and guidelines issued under FEMA (including any re-enactment(s)



or modification(s) thereof for the time being in force and such other rules, regulations, guidelines, laws and
acts as applicable in this regard; subject to approval(s)/consent(s)/permission(s)/sanction(s) as may be
required from the appropriate regulatory authorities/institutions/bodies and which may be agreed to by the
Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board” which term be deemed to include
any Committee thereof constituted by the Board to create, offer, issue and allot from time to time, in one or
more tranches upto 42,50,000 (Forty Two Lacs, Fifty Thousand Only) fully paid equity shares for Rs. 32.25
(Rupees Thirty Two and Twenty Five Paisa only) (having face value of Rs. 10/- each and premium of Rs. 22.25/-
each) aggregating upto INR 13,70,62,500 (Rupees Thirteen Crore, Seventy Lacs, Sixty Two Thousand and Five
Hundred Only) to the below mentioned investor (hereinafter known as “Proposed Allottees”) by way of
preferential issue on such terms and conditions as the Board may, in its absolute discretion think fit:

Sr.No. |[Name of proposed |Address of proposed Allottee Amount (In Rs.)
Allottee
1. BOPA PTE. LTD. 60 Paya Lebar Road #06-01, Paya Lebar |13,70,62,500
Square, Singapore 409051

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Equity Shares to be issued and allotted pursuant to this resolution shall rank
pari passu with the existing Equity Shares of the Company in all respects.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act 2013, the names of the Subscribers
be recorded for the issue of invitation to subscribe to the Equity Shares, a private placement offer letter in
Form No. PAS 4, the Shareholder’s Agreement, Share Subscription Agreement and the terms sheet be and is
hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT application money towards subscription to the Equity Shares of the company shall
be deposited in a separate bank account opened in the name of company with HDFC Bank Limited in
compliance with Section 42 of the Companies Act 2013.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the company be and are hereby authorized
severally/jointly to take all such acts, deeds, matters and things as they may in their absolute discretion deem
necessary and desirable for such purposes, including without limitation, preparing, signing, executing and
filling applications with the appropriate authorities for obtaining requisite approvals for the issuance of the
Equity Shares, as may be required, issuing any clarifications on the issue and allotment of the Equity Shares,
resolving any difficulties, effecting any modifications, changes, variation, alterations, additions and/or
deletion of the foregoing conditions as may be required by any regulator or other authorities or agencies
involved in or concerned with the issue of the Equity Shares.
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Item No. 6: Approval of related party transaction under section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013

To consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without modification, the following Resolution as a Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 188 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act 2013, rule made thereunder (subject to any modification(s) and re-enactment(s) thereof) and
provisions of the relevant regulations of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2015, consent, sanction, permission or approval as the case may be, of the members of the
company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the company for the F.Y 2018-19, to enter
into any contract or arrangement with M/s Suyash Advisory LLP i.e Related Party of Pahal Financial Services
Private Limited as defined under act, with respect procurement and supply of goods and availing or rendering
of any services or appointment of such related party to any office or place of profit in the company or
reimbursement of any transaction, loan transaction as may be approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company and permitted as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rules framed thereunder
and other statutory regulations as may be applicable, or any other transaction of whatever nature, including
the transactions subsequent, foreseen and repetitive in the nature, whether or not made in the ordinary
course of business & at Arm’s Length Price by the company upto Rs. 30,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Crores
Only).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the board of directors of the Company be and are hereby jointly/severally
authorized to take such steps as may be necessary for obtaining approvals, statuary, contractual or otherwise,
in relation to the above and to settle all matters arising out of and incidental thereto, and to sign and execute
all deeds, applications, documents and writings that may be required, on behalf of the Company and generally
to do all acts, deeds, matters and things that may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental thereto for
the purpose of giving effects to this Resolution.”

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Date: 10.08.2018 Kartik S Mehta
Place: Ahmedabad (Managing Director)



Notes:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (THE MEETING) IS

ENTITLED TO APPOINY A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE IN THE MEETING INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF,
AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE DULY STAMPED, FILLED AND SIGNED
INSTRUMENT APPOINTING THE PROXY, SHOULD, HOWEVER, MUST BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED
OFFICE NOT LESS THAN 48(FORTY EIGHT)HOURS BEFORE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 50 (Fifty) members and holding in
aggregate not more than 10 (ten) percent of the total share capital of the company carrying voting rights.
A member holding more than 10 (ten) percent of the total share capital of the company carrying voting
right may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other person or
shareholder.

An Explanatory Statement setting out material facts pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act 2013
relating to the Special Business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting is annexed hereto and
form part of this notice.

Members are requested to note that Dividends not encashed or remaining unclaimed for a period of 7
(seven) years from the date of transfer to the Company’s Unpaid Dividend Account(s)/ Money shall be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established under Section 205 C of the
Companies Act, 1956.

Members are requested to advise any change in their address in written immediately to the Company at
its Registered Office.

Members desiring any information relating to the accounts are requested to write to the Company well in
advance so as to enable the management to keep the information ready.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Date: 10.08.2018 Kartik S Mehta
Place: Ahmedabad (Managing Director)



ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 3: Re-appointment of Mr. Ambalal B Panchal as the Independent Director of the Company

Mr. AB Panchal was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation
at the Board Meeting of the Company held on 30th July 2016 for a term of two consecutive years.

As per 149(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), an Independent Director shall hold office for a term
of up to five consecutive years on the Board of a Company, but shall be eligible for re-appointment on
passing a special resolution by the Company for another term of up to five consecutive years on the Board
of a Company.

In accordance with the aforesaid provisions and in view of long, rich experience, continued valuable
guidance to the management and strong Board performance of Mr. AB Panchal and on recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, it is proposed to reappoint him for the second term as an
Independent Director on the Board of the Company for a period of one year.

Mr. AB Panchal has confirmed that he is not disqualified in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013
and has given his consent to act as Director of the Company. The necessary declarations as required under
the Companies Act, 2013 have been received.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are concerned or interested in the
proposed resolution.

Item No. 4 :- Increase the authorized share capital and amendment to the Memorandum of Association of
the company

Presently the Authorised Share Capital of the Company stands at Rs. 29,40,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Nine
Crore Forty Lacs Only) divided into 1,99,00,000 (One Crore Ninety Nine Lacs Only) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
each and 95,00,000 (Ninety Five Lacs Only) Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each.

In order to meet its business objectives and to maintain CRAR and leverage ratio, it is proposed to increase
the authorized Share Capital of the Company from from Rs. 29,40,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Nine Crore Forty
Lacs Only) divided into 1,99,00,000 (One Crore Ninety Nine Lacs Only) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each and
95,00,000 (Ninety Five Lacs Only) Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each to Rs. 32,50,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Two
Crore and Fifty Lacs Only) divided into 2,30,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each and 95,00,000 Preference
Shares of Rs. 10/- each.

Subsequent to the increase in the authorized share capital of the company, Clause V of the Memorandum of
Association would have to be altered.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are concerned or interested in the
proposed resolution.
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Item No. 5: Issue of Equity Shares on Preferential allotment/Private Placement Basis:

In order to undergo strategic business expansion in future, augment of working capital, for general corporate
purpose, your board of directors proposes to raise capital for Company by issuing Equity Shares of the
company on Private Placement basis after complying with the requirement of applicable provisions of the
Companies Act 2013, if any. The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 10™" August 2018
proposes the issuance of Equity Shares of the Company on private placement basis/preferential allotment.

The information as required for Preferential Issue/Private Placement is as under:

a. Object of the Issue:
To meet the Working capital requirement, your Company intents to raise fund through issue of Equity
Shares . The proceeds of the issue will be utilized by the Company for company’s ongoing operations, to
meet its working capital needs and general corporate purposes.

b. The total number of shares or other securities to be issued:
42,50,000 (Forty Two Lacs Fifty Thousand Only) Equity Shares having face value of Rs. 10/- each

c. The price or price band at/within which the allotment is proposed:
The allotment is proposed to be made Rs. 32.25/- (inclusive of premium of Rs. 22.25/-) each equity shares.

d. Amount which the company intends to raise by way of such securities
Amount aggregating upto Rs. 13,70,62,500/- (Rupees Thirteen Crore, Seventy Lacs, Sixty Two Thousand
and Five Hundred Only).

e. Basis on which the price has been arrived at along with report of the registered valuer:

e Report obtained from B Pandit and Company, Chartered Accountant (having office at 2" Floor, Varsha
Niketan, Nr. Kharakuwa’s Pole, Relief Road, Ahmedabad — 380001
e Value of Equity Shares calculated as per Discounted Cash Flow method is Rs. 32.25 per share.

f. Relevant date with reference to which the price has been arrived at:
The price of shares has been arrived at considering 31* March 2018 as relevant date.

g. The Class or Classes of the person to whom the allotment is proposed to be made:
The allotment is proposed to be made to Non Resident Entities

h. Intention of promoters, directors or the key managerial personnel to subscribe the offer:
None of the promoter, director or the Key Managerial Personnel intend to subscribe to the proposed
issue.



The proposed time within which the allotment shall be completed:
The allotment of the securities shall be made within 60 days from the date of receipt of the application

for the securities.

The names of the proposed Allottees and the percentage of post preferential offer capital that may be
held by them :

No. Post Issue % holding

proposed to be allotted

Pre Issue % of equity shares

holding

Sr. | Name of Proposed

No. | Allottees

21.63

1. BOPA PTE. LTD. - 42,50,000

The change in control, if any, in the company that would occur consequent to the preferential offer:

There shall be no change in the management or control of the Company pursuant to the issue of the equity
shares.

The number of persons to whom the allotment on preferential basis have already been made during the
year, in terms of number of securities as well as price.

During the Financial year, no preferential allotment of equity share has been made to any person.

. The justification for the allotment proposed to be made for consideration other than cash together with
valuation report of the registered valuer:

Not Applicable

The pre and post issue shareholding pattern of the company in the following format:

sr. No. Category Pre Issue Post Issue
0, 0,

No. of Shares % of No. of Shares % of

held share held share

holding holding
A. Promoter’s holding
1 Indian
Individual (Including Joint

holding) 17,07,137 11.08 17,07,137 8.69

Bodies Corporate - - - -

Sub Total 17,07,137 11.08 17,07,137 8.69

2 Foreign Promoter - - -
Subtotal (A) 17,07,137 11.08 17,07,137 8.69




B. Non Promoter’s holding

1 Institutional Investors - - - -

Non- Institution Investors

Bodies Corporate(Including

Foreign Bodies) 41,83,333 27.16 84,33,333 4291
Directors and Relatives 4,89,000 3.18 4,89,000 2.49
Indian Public - - - -

Others (Including NRls) 90,23,474 58.58 90,23,474 45.91
Subtotal (B) 1,36,95,807 88.92 1,79,45,807 91.31

Grand Total (A) + (B) 1,54,02,944 100.00 1,96,52,944 100.00

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are concerned or interested in the proposed
resolution

Item No. 6: Approval of related party transaction under section 188 of the Companies Act 2013

Suyash advisory LLP is a Related Party within the meaning of Section 2(76) of the Companies Act 2013. The Board
of Directors of the Company had, on recommendation of the Audit Committee, passed a resolution at its
meeting held on 10" August 2018 approving the related party transaction with Suyash Advisory LLP.

The particulars of the transaction are as under:

Particulars Information

Name of the Related Party Suyash Advisory LLP

Name of the Director(s) or Key Managerial | Mr. Kartik S Mehta and Ms. Purvi J Bhavsar
Personnel who is related

Nature of Relationship The Managing Directors of Pahal Financial Services
Private Limited are the Designated Partner of Suyash
Advisory LLP

Material terms of the transactions Transaction is to be done on actual basis in the ordinary
course of business and on arm’s length basis as
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company

Monetary Value Upto Rs. 30,00,00,00 (Rupees Thirty Crore)




None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives except Mr. Kartik S Mehta and Ms. Purvi J
Bhavsar are concerned or interested in the proposed resolution.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Date: 10.08.2018 Kartik S Mehta
Place: Ahmedabad (Managing Director)
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PROXY FORM

(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014)

Name of the Member(s) ....c.cceeevevececreieceee e Emailid i e
Registered address .......ceveveveerececesesee e e FOIIO NO.: ettt st s

I/We being the member(s) .....ccoeeeeeveerereee e Shares of the above named company, hereby appoint:
1) RO e having email id ....cccccoeevevevivneeeceee, or failing him

2) s RO oot having email id .....ccceeeievievereceeceee, or failing him

3) RO et having email id ......c.ccce v

and whose signature(s) are appended below, as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on
my behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday, 17®" August 2018 at 10:30 A.M
at First Floor-2, City Mall, Nr. Rajpath Club, Opp. Madhur Hotel, S.G Highway, Bodakdev, Ahmedabad — 380059
and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Sr. No. | Resolution
1. Adoption of Financial Statement

2. Ratification of appointment of Statutory Auditor

3. Re-appointment of Mr. Ambalal B Panchal as the Independent Director of the Company

4, Increase the Authorised Share Capital and amendment to the Memorandum of Association of
the Company

5. Issue of Equity Shares on Preferential allotment/Private Placement Basis

6. Approval of Related Party Transaction under section 188 of the Companies act 2013

Signed this.......cccceeeieeeiciiieeeeeies day ofeeeeiieiee 2018
Rs. 1
Revenue
Stamp
Signature of Shareholder Signature of Proxy holder
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Notes:

1.

A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

This form of proxy, in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not
more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more
than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as
proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

Corporate members intending to send their authorised representative(s) to attend the meeting are

requested to send a Certified Copy of the Board Resolution authorising their representative(s) to attend
and vote on their behalf at the meeting.
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

Regd. Folio NO./CIIent ID: e ettt nee e e

Name and Address of First/Sole SHArEROlAEI: ..ottt ettt st st st saesresaesvessessseneen

No. of Shares held: e e e

| hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Friday, 17" August 2018
at First Floor-2, City Mall, Nr. Rajpath Club, Opp. Madhur Hotel, S.G Highway, Bodakdev, Ahmedabad -380059
at 10:30a.m.

Signature of Member/Proxy

Notes:
a) Only Member/Proxy can attend the meeting.

b) Member/Proxy who wish to attend the meeting must bring his attendance slip to the meeting and hand it
over at the entrance of meeting hall.

c) Member/Proxy should bring his/her copy of the Annual Report for reference at the meeting.
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MAP FOR PAHAL FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
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